
AGENDA
REGULAR SESSION

MONDAY, MAY 4, 2020 7:00 PM
PRESIDING: THE HONORABLE MAYOR JOSEPH R. PETERSON

CHAIRPERSON OF THE EVENING: THE HONORABLE ROBERT ALDERMAN
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

ROLL CALL Mayor Peterson, Alderman, Calvin, DeSana, Maiani, Sabuda, Schultz
 

PRESENTATIONS 
 

PRESENTATION OF PETITIONS 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
• Special Assessment District #944A  Sidewalk Repairs (Antoine Street to Ford Avenue from 
Electric Street to Biddle Avenue)

• Commercial Redevelopment District – 100 Maple (also known as 30405658  1st Street), 130
134 Maple, and 140142 Maple Street 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

CALL TO THE PUBLIC
At this time, any persons having matters of immediate importance which they were unable to 
place in writing prior to the agenda deadline may approach the podium to address Mayor and 
Council.
 

CONSENT AGENDA All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the 
City Council and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these 
items, unless a Council member so requests, in which event the items will be removed from the 
Consent Agenda and added to the regular agenda in New Business.
1. Approval of City Council Meeting Minutes  04.20.2020
2. Rezoning Request 141 Goodell, 136 Goodell and Vacant 1203 2nd Street
3. 202021 City Hall Cleaning Contract Extension
4. 202021 Police and Court Cleaning Contract Extension
5. Purchase Additional 96 Gallon Toters (Carts)

 

NEW BUSINESS 
6. Special Assessment District #944A
7. Commercial Redevelopment District – 100 Maple (also known as 30405658  1st Street), 130

134 Maple, and 140142 Maple Street 
8. Fort Street Sign Maintenance Contract
9. Summer Event Cancellations
10. Sanitary Sewer Investigation
11. 2nd Amendment to the Purchase Agreement for the properties at 18511857 McKinley and 1865

1869 McKinley, Wyandotte  for the construction of two (2) new single family homes. 
12. Sale of former 3367 12th Street (30' x 100')
13. Sale of former 316 Clark (50' x 102')



14. Sale of former 1331 Walnut (7.5' x 120')
15. Sale of former Vacant Property on Sycamore (10' x 35')
16. Final Reading #1486: Ordinance Amendment to Chapter 14  Garbage, Trash and Weeds

 

BILLS & ACCOUNTS 
 

REPORTS & MINUTES 
Beautification Commission 04/15/2020
Downtown Development Authority 02/11/2020
Fire Commission 3/10/2020
 

REMARKS OF THE MAYOR, COUNCIL, & ELECTED OFFICIALS 
 

NEXT MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL: May 18, 2020
 

ADJOURNMENT 



PUBLIC HEARINGS

Now is the time and place to hear objections,
if any, regarding the following item(s):

Special Assessment District #944A -
Sidewalk Repairs

(Antoine Street to Ford Avenue from Electric Street to Biddle Avenue)

Commercial Redevelopment District – 100 Maple (also known as
3040-56-58 - 1st Street), 130- 134 Maple, and 140-142 Maple Street



1  April 20, 2020 

 CITY OF WYANDOTTE 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

A Regular Session of the Wyandotte City Council was held via Virtual Telecommunication methods, 

due to COVID-19 in accordance with Executive Order 2020-48 using the Zoom Audio platform, on 

Monday, April 20, 2020, and was called to order at 7:00pm with Honorable Mayor Joseph R. Peterson 

presiding. 
 

The meeting began with the Pledge of Allegiance, followed by roll call.

 
Present: Councilpersons Robert Alderman, Christopher Calvin, Robert DeSana, Megan Maiani, Leonard 

Sabuda, and Donald Schultz 
 

ABSENT: None 
 

Also, Present: City Treasurer, Todd Browning; Theodore Galeski, City Assessor; William Look, City 

Attorney; Greg Mayhew, City Engineer; and Lawrence Stec, City Clerk 

 
PRESENTATIONS 
 

PRESENTATION OF PETITIONS 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

CALL TO THE PUBLIC 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

2020-74 MINUTES  

By Councilperson Schultz, supported by Councilperson Maiani 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held under the date of March 2, 2020, be approved as 

recorded, without objection. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2020-75 QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORTS – 3Q & 4Q 2019 

By Councilperson Schultz, supported by Councilperson Maiani 

BE IT RESOLVED that Council hereby receives and places on file the 2019 3rd and 4th Quarter 

Quarterly Investment Report submitted on April 20, 2020 by the Deputy Treasurer/Assistant Finance 

Director. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2020-76 2020 BISHOP PARK CONCESSION LEASE 

By Councilperson Schultz, supported by Councilperson Maiani 

RESOLVED by the City Council that Council hereby CONCURS in the recommendation of the 

Superintendent of Recreation and the Recreation Commission to award a one year extension to operate 

the Bishop Park Concession Stand for the 2020 season to Mohammed Motahhar, in the amount of 

$2,000 provided the proper insurance is placed on file in the City Clerk's Office and all stipulations are 

adhered to as outlined in said lease; AND 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Council authorizes the Mayor and City Clerk to sign said lease 

agreement on behalf of the City of Wyandotte. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

 

 



2  April 20, 2020 

 

2020-77 2020/2021 BLOUNT CRUISE SHIP DOCKINGS 

By Councilperson Schultz, supported by Councilperson Maiani 

RESOLVED by the City Council that Council CONCURS with the recommendation of the 

Superintendent of Recreation and hereby APPROVES the Bishop Park Docking Agreement with Blount 

Small Ship Adventures for 2020-2021.  Ships will dock on June 29, July 11, August 18, August 23, 

August 30, and September 4 of 2020 and 2021, at a rate of $200 per day plus $25 per docking for 

garbage removal; AND  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council authorizes the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the 

docking contract. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2020-78 2020 WASF GUIDE BOOK 

By Councilperson Schultz, supported by Councilperson Maiani 

BE IT RESOLVED that Council concurs with the recommendation of the Special Event Coordinator to 

approve the contract between the City of Wyandotte and Community Publishing in the amount of $5,000 

for the 2020 WSAF Guide Book to be inserted in their June publication of the Wyandotte Today 

Magazine with funds to be paid from the WSAF Expense Account #285-225-925-860. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute said contract on 

behalf of the City of Wyandotte. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2020-79 MIMI’S MISSION NON-PROFIT STATUS REQUEST 

By Councilperson Schultz, supported by Councilperson Maiani 

RESOLVED that Council approves the request from Mimi’s Mission to be recognized as a non-profit 

organization operating in the community for the purpose of obtaining a Charitable Gaming License. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

NEW BUSINESS  

2020-80 STATE OF EMERGENCY – CITY OF WYANDOTTE 

By Councilperson Schultz, supported by Councilperson Maiani 

WHEREAS, the City of WYANDOTTE (the "City") is taking proactive steps to prevent and prepare for 

the spread of the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19); 

WHEREAS, any widespread local outbreak of COVID-19 could hinder and/or cease operations of the 

City and overwhelm governmental services; including, Emergency Medical Services, Hospitals, Urgent 

Cares, utilities, Fire and Police services; 

WHEREAS, the spread of COVID-19 falls within definitions of the Emergency Management Act of 

1976, Act 390 of 1976, represents an occurrence or threat of widespread or severe damage, injury or loss 

of life; 

WHEREAS, as a result of this ongoing situation and the uncertainty of the impact to WYANDOTTE's 

residents and City employees, the City believes it is necessary to authorize the Mayor or his designee to 

take steps to protect the health and safety of City residents and employees and to create reasonable 

flexibility to react and take action to COVID-19 threat; 

WHEREAS, the City shall require heightened and strict protocols for WYANDOTTE's Fire, Police, and 

Public Works Departments, when required to enter residences and for any interaction with the general 

public and shall work to limit face-to-face interactions between the City employees and potentially 

infected general public during daily business; 

WHEREAS, it has become necessary based upon the above stated conditions for the City Council to 

declare by this Resolution a "State of Emergency" as authorized under Section 10 of Act 390, P.A. 1976 

and grant the Mayor or his designee the emergency powers and authority provided therein; including, 

but not limited to: authority to direct and coordinate the development of emergency operations plans and 

programs in accordance with the policies and plans established by the appropriate federal, state and local 

agencies; authority to appropriate and  expend funds, make contracts, and obtain and distribute 



3  April 20, 2020 

equipment, materials, and supplies for disaster purposes and to maintain the operations and services of 

the City; authority to suspend or not enforce any or all City Ordinances, regulations, policies, or 

practices adverse to the health and safety of residents; authority to order closure of any governmental 

building, program, activity, meeting, or service; authority to suspend any activity, program or service 

with or without notice; authority to approve or add any service, function or activity deemed necessary to 

protect the health and safety of residents and employees; authority to provide for the health and safety of 

persons and property including providing emergency assistance and coordination of the local response to 

emergencies within the municipality; authority to appoint, employ, remove, or provide fire, police and 

other personnel as needed; authority to schedule, reschedule, restrict and/or cancel, with or without 

notice, any meeting of any City Board; Commission, or Sub-Committee, including any or all Planning 

Commission, Zoning Board of Appeals or other City meeting and to otherwise restrict or impose 

reasonable safeguards for all approved meetings; authority to terminate or suspend any and all permits,  

licenses, or permissions granted by the City which are adverse to the health and safety of residents, 

including the termination or suspension of any application or existing solicitation permit, temporary 

retail permit or any other permit, license or permission reasonably expected to increase personal 

interaction or spread of the virus without appropriate safeguards; 

WHEREAS, all City Departments, employees, consultants and independent contractors are hereby 

directed to keep records of all expenditures, costs and expenses incurred as a result of the City's response 

to this emergency situation; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by passage of this Resolution the WYANDOTE City Council, 

in accordance with Section 10 of Act 390, P.A. 1976, as amended, hereby declares that a "State of 

Emergency" exists within our jurisdiction as of March 23rd, 2020, and that the City Mayor and his 

designee are hereby granted the above temporary authority and as otherwise provided by statute through 

May 4, 2020, unless extended; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, a certified copy of this resolution will be   by LEIN or facsimile to the 

Commanding Officer of the Emergency Management Division, Department of State Police (LEIN code: 

ELES), MSP Special Operations Division (LEIN code: ELOP), and the appropriate EMO District 

Coordinator, pursuant to Section 10 of Act 390, P.A. 1976, as amended. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2020-81 EMERGENCY PAID SICK LEAVE ACT 

By Councilperson Schultz, supported by Councilperson Maiani 

CITY OF WYANDOTTE 

RESOLUTION OF CITY OF WYANDOTTE EMERGENCY RESPONDERS EMERGENCY PAID 

SICK LEAVE ACT REGARDING COVID-19 

Whereas, the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) is a respiratory disease that can result in serious illness or 

death that can easily spread from person to person; and 

Whereas, in response to the outbreak on January 31, 2020, the United States Department of Health and 

Human Services Secretary Alex Azar declared a Public health emergency; and 

Whereas, on March 10, 2020, Governor Gretchen Whitmer declared a state of emergency across the 

State of Michigan pursuant to Executive Order No. 2020-4; and 

Whereas, on March 13, 2020, President Donald Trump declared a national state of emergency due to the 

outbreak; and  

Whereas, in response to the present public health crisis, the House of Representatives adopted House 

Resolution 6201 establishing the Emergency Family Medical Leave Expansion Act; and  

Whereas, pursuant to the language in the statute which goes into effect on April 2, 2020, Section 3105, 

special rule for health care providers and emergency responders provides that  employer of an employee 

who is a health care provider or an emergency responder may elect to exclude such employees from the 

application of this provision and the amendments made under Section 3102 of this Act; and  

Whereas, additional protections have also been afforded to first responders because of the important and 

critical nature of their continued working and responding to duty during this emergency; and 



4  April 20, 2020 

Whereas, the public safety of the residents of City of Wyandotte remains the critical concern at present 

and the necessity of acting in accordance with this special rule is in the best interests of the residents of 

the City.   

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: 

1. That the City Council of the City of Wyandotte has as determined effective, Monday, March 30, 

2020 exempt all emergency responders from the provisions of Emergency Paid Sick Leave Act. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2020-82 EMERGENCY FAMILY MEDICAL LEAVE EXPANSION ACT 

By Councilperson Schultz, supported by Councilperson Maiani 

CITY OF WYANDOTTE 

RESOLUTION OF CITY EMERGENCY RESPONDERS EMERGENCY FAMILY MEDICAL 

LEAVE EXPANSION ACT REGARDING COVID-19 

Whereas, the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) is a respiratory disease that can result in serious illness or 

death that can easily spread from person to person; and 

Whereas, in response to the outbreak on January 31, 2020, the United States Department of Health and 

Human Services Secretary Alex Azar declared a Public health emergency; and 

Whereas, on March 10, 2020, Governor Gretchen Whitmer declared a state of emergency across the 

State of Michigan pursuant to Executive Order No. 2020-4; and 

Whereas, on March 13, 2020, President Donald Trump declared a national state of emergency due to the 

outbreak; and  

Whereas, in response to the present public health crisis, the House of Representatives adopted House 

Resolution 6201 establishing the Emergency Family Medical Leave Expansion Act; and  

Whereas, pursuant to the language in the statute which goes into effect on April 2, 2020, Section 3105, 

special rule for health care providers and emergency responders provides that  employer of an employee 

who is a health care provider or an emergency responder may elect to exclude such employees from the 

application of this provision and the amendments made under Section 3102 of this Act; and  

Whereas, additional protections have also been afforded to first responders because of the important and 

critical nature of their continued working and responding to duty during this emergency; and 

Whereas, the public safety of the residents of the City remains the critical concern at present and the 

necessity of acting in accordance with this special rule is in the best interests of the residents of the City.   

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: 

1. That the City Council of the City of Wyandotte has as determined effective, Monday, March 30, 

2020 exempt all emergency responders from the provisions of Emergency Medical and Family 

Leave Expansion Act. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2020-83 REAPPOINTMENT – DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS 

By Councilperson Schultz, supported by Councilperson Maiani 

RESOLVED by the City Council hereby re-appoints the firm of Look Makowski and Look, P.C. as the 

Department of Legal Affairs for the City of Wyandotte for a two-year term effective April 20, 2020 to 

April 19, 2022 with a salary of $80,000 per year to come from Account Number 101-200-825-330. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



5  April 20, 2020 

2020-84 APPOINTMENT TO PLANNING COMMISSION – K. STEC  

By Councilperson Schultz, supported by Councilperson Maiani 

WHEREAS, a vacancy has occurred on the Planning Commission due to the death of Commissioner 

Bob Benson; and 

WHEREAS, City Council extends their deepest condolences to the family of Bob Benson as well as 

thanks and appreciation for the service Bob has given to the City of Wyandotte;  

BE IT RESOLVED that City Council hereby CONCURS with the recommendation of Mayor Peterson 

to appoint Kelly Stec of 2414 15th St., Wyandotte, MI to the Planning Commission.  Term to expire 

April 2023. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2020-85 DEFICIT ELIMINATION PLAN – EQUIPMENT & REPLACEMENT FUND 

By Councilperson Schultz, supported by Councilperson Maiani 

WHEREAS, the financial statements of the City of Wyandotte show a deficit in the Equipment and 

Replacement Fund; and 

WHEREAS, The City of Wyandotte is required to adopt A Deficit Elimination Plan that addresses said 

deficit in the Equipment and Replacement Fund; and 

WHEREAS, Staff has prepared the Deficit Elimination Plan to address the requirement; now therefore 

BE IT RESOLVED BY CITY COUNCIL, That Council adopts the Deficit Elimination Plan; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY CITY COUNCIL, That the Deputy Treasurer/Assistant Finance 

Director be and hereby is directed to make any necessary filings of the Deficit Elimination Plan to 

ensure compliance with accounting requirements. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2020-86 DEFICIT ELIMINATION PLAN – CONSTRUCTION FUND 

By Councilperson Schultz, supported by Councilperson Maiani 

WHEREAS, the financial statements of the City of Wyandotte show a deficit in the Construction Fund; 

and WHEREAS, The City of Wyandotte is required to adopt a Deficit Elimination Plan that addresses 

said deficit in the Construction Fund; and 

WHEREAS, Staff has prepared the attached proposed Deficit Elimination Plan along with budget 

amendments to address the requirement; now therefore 

BE IT RESOLVED BY CITY COUNCIL, That Council adopts the Deficit Elimination Plan; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY CITY COUNCIL, That the Deputy Treasurer/Assistant Finance 

Director be and hereby is directed to make any necessary filings of the Deficit Elimination Plan to 

ensure compliance with accounting requirements. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2020-87 DEFICIT ELIMINATION PLAN – BROWNFIELD REDEV. AUTH. FUND 

By Councilperson Schultz, supported by Councilperson Maiani 

WHEREAS, the financial statements of the City of Wyandotte show a deficit in the Brownfield 

Redevelopment Authority Fund; and 

WHEREAS, The City of Wyandotte is required to adopt A Deficit Elimination Plan that addresses said 

deficit in the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Fund; and 

WHEREAS, Staff has prepared the attached proposed Deficit Elimination Plan to address the 

requirement; now therefore 

BE IT RESOLVED BY CITY COUNCIL, That Council adopts the Deficit Elimination Plan for the 

Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Fund; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY CITY COUNCIL, That the Deputy Treasurer/Assistant Finance 

Director be and hereby is directed to make any necessary filings of the Deficit Elimination Plan to 

ensure compliance with accounting requirements. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

 



6  April 20, 2020 

2020-88 WPD PURCHASE OF BODY WORN CAMERAS 

By Councilperson Schultz, supported by Councilperson Maiani 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL that the Council concurs with the approval to purchase 

Body Worn Cameras from Axon (Bid File #4777) in the amount of $63,917.00, enter in to a Total 

Assurance Plan agreement for (5) years in the amount of $31,730.00. each year, with total cost after 6 

years in the amount of $190,837.00; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL authorizes the police department to proceed 

with this purchase. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2020-89 1ST AMEND. TO MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT – WAYNE METRO CAA 

By Councilperson Schultz, supported by Councilperson Maiani 

RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL that the communication from the City Engineer 

regarding the 1st Amendment to the Maintenance Agreement between the City of Wyandotte and 

Wayne Metropolitan Community Action Agency is hereby approved; AND 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute said 1st 

Amendment as presented to Council.  

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2020-90 BID FILE #4719: WASTE MANAGEMENT CONTRACT AMENDMENT 

By Councilperson Schultz, supported by Councilperson Maiani 

Resolved by City Council that Council concurs with the recommendation of the City Engineer and 

approves the contract amendment to Waste Management's Contract for File #4719 Solid Waste 

Collection Program, and further, authorizes the Mayor and City Clerk to sign said contract amendment. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2020-91 BID FILE #4707: CONTRACT EXTENSION – ASPHALT RESURFACING 

By Councilperson Schultz, supported by Councilperson Maiani 

Resolved by City Council that Council agrees with the recommendation of the City Engineer and 

approves the contract extension of Bid File #4707 for Al's Asphalt Paving Co. in the amount of 

$2,200,000 paid from the following accounts:  $542,000 from account #202-440-825-460, $842,000 

paid from account #203-440-825460, $816,000 paid from account #492-200-825-460. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2020-92 BID FILE #4757: CONTRACT EXT. – BITUMINOUS STREET JOINT & CRACK SEALING  

By Councilperson Schultz, supported by Councilperson Maiani 

Resolved by City Council that Council agrees with the recommendation of the City Engineer and 

approves the contract extension of Bid File #4757 for Michigan Joint Sealing in the amount of $530,000 

which shall be paid from the following accounts:  $261,000 from account #202-440-825-460 and 

$269,000 paid from account #492-200-825-460. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2020-93 BID FILE #4726: CONTRACT EXTENSION – GRASS CUTTING SERVICES 

By Councilperson Schultz, supported by Councilperson Maiani 

Resolved by City Council that Council agrees with the recommendation of the City Engineer and 

APPROVES the contract extension of Bid File #4726 for U.S. Lawns of Livonia in the amount of 

$70,944 paid from the following accounts:  $60,192 from account #492-200-850-520 and $10,752 paid 

from account #101-448-825480. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

 

 

 

 



7  April 20, 2020 

2020-94 BID FILE #4778: DEMOLITION OF VARIOUS STRUCTURES 

By Councilperson Schultz, supported by Councilperson Maiani 

RESOLVED that Council concurs with the recommendation of the City Engineer and approves the 

award for Bid File #4778 to Pro Excavation of Wyandotte, MI, for the Demolition of Various Structures 

in the amount of $264,000, and authorizes the Mayor and City Clerk to proceed with the execution of 

this contract, and, 

FURTHER RESOLVED the project will be funded from account 492-200-850-519 in the amount of 

$264,000 for the demolition of structures at: 

351 HUDSON STREET  

2303 3RD STREET  

569 ORANGE STREET  

616 ORANGE STREET  

405 CHERRY STREET  

321 SYCAMORE STREET  

425-429 ST. JOHNS STREET  

2557 BIDDLE AVENUE  

2533 BIDDLE AVENUE  

863 8TH STREET 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2020-95 COMPOSTING AGREEMENT 

By Councilperson Schultz, supported by Councilperson Maiani 

RESOLVED by the City Council that Council approves the Composting Agreement with Regulated 

Resource Recovery, Inc. to provide processing of compost materials for the City at the unit rate of $8.75 

per cubic yard, and 

FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor is authorized to execute said Composting Agreement. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2020-96 FINAL READING #1485: RETIREMENT ALLOWANCE ORDINANCE 

By Councilperson Schultz, supported by Councilperson Maiani 

AN ORDINANCE ENTITLED AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTIONS 2-206(1), 2-206(2) 

DEFINITION OF “FINAL AVERAGE COMPENSATION” 2-206 DEFINTION OF “POLICEMAN 

OR FIREMAN MEMBER”, 2-206 DEFINITION OF “VOLUNTARY RETIREMENT AGE”, 2-

207(c),(1),(4) “MEMBERSHIP”, 2-214 “POLICEMAN AND FIREMAN MEMBER RETIREMENT 

ALLOWANCE”, 2-221(b) “RETIREMENT ALLOWANCE OPTIONS”, AND 2-245(b) “SPECIAL 

SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT BENEFIT ALLOWANCE” OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

OF THE CITY OF WYANDOTTE. 

The City of Wyandotte Ordains: 

Section 1. Amendment of Sec. 2-206. “Definitions” by amending the definition of “Final Average 

Compensation” 

Sec. 2-206. Definitions 

Final Average Compensation means: 

1. For general members, the average of any three (3) consecutive years of a member's credited service 

producing the highest total amount of said member's base wage plus the average longevity payments 

made to the member during the last three (3) years of his employment, effective October 6, 1980. If a 

member has less than three (3) years of credited service, his final average compensation received by him 

during his total period of credited service. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, effective 

October 5, 1987, for members of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees 

(A.F.S.C.M.E.) Local 894, and for members of the Police Officers Association of Michigan (P.O.A.M.), 

final average compensation (except in the case of a deferred retirement, a member's resignation or a 

member's discharge) shall also include a member's accrued vacation and sick leave paid on retirement, 

provided however, that said accrued vacation and sick leave amounts shall in no event increase a 

member's final average compensation more than ten (10) per cent. Notwithstanding anything herein to 

the contrary, effective February 1, 1990, for nonunion general members, for members of the American 

Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (A.F.S.C.M.E.) Local 894, and members of the 

F.O.P. police/fire dispatcher/clerical, final average compensation (except in the case of a deferred 

retirement, a member's resignation or a member's discharge) shall also include a member's accrued 



8  April 20, 2020 

vacation and sick leave paid on retirement, provided however, that said accrued vacation and sick leave 

amounts shall in no event increase a member's final average compensation more than twenty-five (25) 

per cent. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, effective February 1, 2000, for nonunion 

general members and for members of the American Federation of State, County, and Municipal 

Employees  

(A.F.S.C.M.E.) Local 894, final average compensation means the average of the highest three (3) 

consecutive years of compensation, and includes all base wages, overtime, and longevity. Final average 

compensation (except in the case of a deferred retirement, a member's resignation or a member's 

discharge) will also include accrued sick and vacation time paid on retirement. The accrued sick and 

vacation amounts shall not increase a member's final average compensation by more than twenty-five 

(25) per cent. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, effective February 1, 2013, for nonunion 

general members, and June 30, 2013, for members of the American Federation of State, County, and 

Municipal Employees (A.F.S.C.M.E.) Local 894, final average compensation means the average of the 

highest three (3) consecutive years of compensation, and includes all base wages, and longevity. Final 

average compensation (except in the case of a deferred retirement, a member's resignation or a member's 

discharge) will also include accrued sick and vacation time paid on retirement. The accrued sick and 

vacation amounts shall not increase a member's final average compensation by more than twenty-five 

(25) per cent. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, effective January 1, 1999, for members of the 

American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (A.F.S.C.M.E.) Local 894, final 

average compensation means the average of the highest three (3) consecutive years of compensation, 

and includes all base wages, overtime, and longevity.  Final average compensation (except in the case of 

a deferred retirement, a member's resignation or a member's discharge) will also include accrued sick 

and vacation time paid on retirement. The accrued sick and vacation amounts shall not increase a 

member's final average compensation by more than twenty-five (25) per cent.  

2. For police members, the best twelve (12) months of compensation plus holiday pay for the three 

hundred sixty-five-day period preceding the effective date of retirement plus longevity contained in the 

last year of credited service, effective October 6, 1980. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, 

effective February 1, 1987, for members of the patrol officers bargaining unit only, final average 

compensation (except in the case of a deferred retirement, a member's resignation or a member's 

discharge) shall also include a member's accrued vacation and sick leave paid on retirement, provided 

however, that said accrued vacation and sick amounts shall in no event increase a member's final 

average compensation more than ten (10) per cent. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, for 

police members and police department command officers, final average compensation means the best 

twelve (12) consecutive months of compensation, plus longevity contained in the last year of credited 

service, and shall also include holiday pay for the three hundred sixtyfive-day period preceding the 

effective date of retirement, effective October 5, 1981. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, 

effective February 1, 1990, for police members and police department command officers, final average 

compensation (except in the case of a deferred retirement, a member's resignation or a member's 

discharge) shall also include a member's accrued vacation and sick leave paid on retirement, provided 

however, that said accrued vacation and sick leave amounts shall in no event increase a member's final 

average compensation more than twenty-five (25) per cent. Notwithstanding anything herein to the 

contrary, effective February 1, 1999, for police patrol members and February 1, 2000, for police 

command members, final average compensation means the average of the highest three (3) out of the 

last ten (10) years of compensation, and includes all base wages, shift differential, eligible overtime as 

defined in the collective bargaining agreement, annual payments of accrued compensatory time, 

longevity pay, and holiday pay. Final average compensation (except in the case of a deferred retirement, 

a member's resignation or a member's discharge) will also include sick and vacation time paid on 

retirement. The accrued sick and vacation amounts shall not increase a member's final average 

compensation by more than twenty-five (25) per cent.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, 

effective January 1, 2020, for police patrol and command officers hired after February 1, 1999, final 

average compensation means the average of the highest sixty (60) consecutive months of base wages out 



9  April 20, 2020 

of the last ten (10) consecutive years.   For fire members "final average compensation" means the best 

twelve (12) months of compensation plus longevity contained in the last year of  

credited service, effective October 4, 1976, and "final average compensation" shall also include holiday 

pay for the three hundred sixty-five-day period preceding the effective date of retirement, effective 

October 5, 1981. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, effective February 1, 1987, for fire 

members, final average compensation (except in the case of a deferred retirement, a member's 

resignation or a member's discharge) shall also include a member's accrued vacation and sick leave paid 

on retirement, provided however, that said accrued vacation and sick leave amounts shall in no event 

increase a member's final average compensation by more than ten (10) per cent. Notwithstanding 

anything herein to the contrary, effective February 1, 1990, for fire members, final average 

compensation (except in the case of a deferred retirement, a member's resignation or a member's 

discharge) shall also include a member's accrued vacation and sick leave paid on retirement, provided 

however, that said accrued vacation and sick leave amounts shall in no event increase a member's final 

average compensation more than twenty-five (25) per cent. Notwithstanding anything herein to the 

contrary, effective February 1, 2000, for fire members, final average compensation means the average of 

the highest three (3) out of the last ten (10) consecutive years of compensation, and includes all base 

wages, ALS premium pay, overtime, longevity, food allowance and holiday pay. Final average 

compensation (except in the case of a deferred retirement, a member's resignation or a member's 

discharge) will also include accrued sick and vacation time paid on retirement. The accrued sick and 

vacation amounts shall not increase a member's final average compensation by more than twenty-five 

(25) per cent. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, effective February 1, 2012, for fire 

members final average compensation means the average of the highest three (3) consecutive years out of 

the last ten (10) years of compensation, and includes all base wages, ALS premium pay, food allowance 

and holiday pay for this time period. Final average compensation (except in the case of a deferred 

retirement, a member's resignation or a member's discharge) will also include accrued sick and vacation 

time paid on retirement. The accrued sick and vacation amounts shall not increase a member's final 

average compensation by more than twenty-five (25) per cent.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the 

contrary, effective January 1, 2016, for fire members, final average compensation means the average of 

the highest three (3) out of the last ten (10) consecutive years of compensation, and includes all base 

wages, ALS premium pay, eligible overtime as defined in the collective bargaining agreement, 

longevity, food allowance and holiday pay. Final average compensation (except in the case of a deferred 

retirement, a member's resignation or a member's discharge) will also include accrued sick and vacation 

time paid on retirement. The accrued sick and vacation amounts shall not increase a member's final 

average compensation by more than twenty-five (25) per cent. 

Section 2. Amendment of Sec. 2-206. “Definitions” by amending the definition of “Policeman or 

Fireman Member” in Subparagraph (1) 

Sec. 2-206. Definitions 

Member means any person who is included in the membership of the retirement system as set forth 

below: 

1. Policeman or fireman member means any member who is employed in the police or fire departments 

of the city holding the rank of patrolman or pipeman, including probationary patrolman or pipeman, or 

higher rank. The term "policeman or fireman member" shall not include (i) any person who is privately 

employed as a policeman or a fireman, (ii) any person who is temporarily employed as a policeman or 

fireman for any emergency, (iii) any civilian employee in the police or fire departments, , (iii) any 

civilian employee in the police or fire departments, (iv) any police patrol member hired between after 

February 1, 1999, and December 31, 2019, who did not elect to join the system as of January 1, 2020, 

(v) any police command member hired between after February 1, 1999 and December 31, 2019, who did 

not elect to join the system as of January 1,  

2020, and (vi) any fireman member hired after October 1, 2000. 

2. Hospital member means any member who is employed in the Wyandotte General Hospital.    

3. Municipal service member means any member who is employed in the municipal service department 

of the city.    



10  April 20, 2020 

4. General member  means any member, including nonunion administrative, technical, and clerical 

employees and members of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees 

(A.F.S.C.M.E.) Local 894, and members of the Police Officers Association of Michigan (P.O.A.M.), 

except (i) a policeman or fireman member, (ii) a hospital member, (iii) a municipal service member, (iv) 

nonunion administrative, technical, or clerical employees of the city hired after October 1, 1999, (v) 

members of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (A.F.S.C.M.E.) Local 

894, hired after March 31, 2000, (vi) nonunion administrative, technical, or clerical employees of the 

city hired before October 1, 1999, who voluntarily elected to leave membership of the retirement system 

on March 31, 2001, pursuant to the rules in effect at that time, (vii) members of the American Federation 

of State, County and Municipal Employees (A.F.S.C.M.E.) Local 894, hired before March 31, 2000, 

who voluntarily elected to leave membership of the retirement system on March 31, 2001, pursuant to 

the rules in effect at that time, (viii) members of the Police Officers Association of Michigan 

(P.O.A.M.)—Dispatchers/clerical bargaining unit hired after July 1, 2001, (ix) members of the Police 

Officers Association of Michigan (P.O.A.M.)—Dispatchers/clerical bargaining unit hired before July 1, 

2001, who voluntarily elected to leave membership of the retirement system on June 30, 2002, pursuant 

to the rules in effect at that time, and (x) members of the American Federation of State, County and 

Municipal Employees (A.F.S.C.M.E.) Local 894, hired before March 31, 2000, who voluntarily elected 

to leave membership of the retirement system on March 31, 2013, pursuant to the rules in effect at that 

time. Section 3. Amendment of Sec. 2-206. “Definitions” by amending the definition of “Voluntary 

Retirement Age” 

Sec. 2-206. Definitions 

Voluntary Retirement Age means the applicable age set forth below: 

1. For a police member hired prior to February 1, 1999, the first to occur, (i) fifty-five (55) years of age, 

or (ii) twenty-five (25) years of credited service and at least age fifty (50), effective October 4, 1976. For 

a police member hired after February 1, 1999, the first to occur, (i) fifty-five (55) years of age and 

twenty-five (25) years of credited service or (ii) sixty (60) years of age with ten (10) years of credited 

service.  

2. For a fire member, the first to occur of (i) fifty-five (55) years of age, or (ii) fifty (50) years of age and 

thirty (30) years of credited service, effective October 3, 1977. Notwithstanding anything herein to the 

contrary, effective February 1, 1990, for a fire member, twenty-five (25) years of credited service 

without regard to age, or age fifty-five (55) with ten (10) or more years of credited service.    

3. Age sixty (60) years for a hospital member.    

4. For an hourly municipal service member, age sixty (60) years, or (ii) the age at which he acquires 

thirty (30) years of credited service. Effective January 1, 1988, for an exempt or nonexempt salaried 

municipal service member only, the first to occur of (i) age sixty (60) years, or (ii) the age at which he 

acquires twenty-five (25)  

years of credited service.    

5. For a general member, the first to occur of (i) age fifty-five (55) years, or (ii) the age at which he 

acquires twenty-five (25) years of credited service, effective October 4, 1976. Notwithstanding anything 

herein to the contrary, effective February 1, 1990, for a general member, twenty-five (25) years of 

credited service without regard to age, or age fifty-five (55) with ten (10) or more years of credited 

service   Section 4. Amendment of Subparagraphs (c)(1) and (4) of Sec. 2-207. “Membership” Sec. 2-

207. Membership (a) The membership of the retirement system shall include all persons who are, and 

who become, officers or employees of the city, except as provided in subsection (b) of this section.  

(b) The membership of the retirement system, effective April 1992, shall not include:  

1) Elective and appointive officials who are not in full time employment with the city;    

2) Any person whose services are compensated on a fee or contractual basis;    

3) Any person in a position normally working less than eighty (80) hours per month;    

4) Any person hired on a temporary part-time seasonal, co-op, internship or emergency or volunteer 

basis, including crossing guards and park rangers;    

5) The medical director and actuary;    



11  April 20, 2020 

6) Any person who cannot complete the minimum credited service requirements, other than those 

eligible under section 2-262 dealing with the Reciprocal Retirement Act;    

7) Any person in receipt of retirement allowance from the City of Wyandotte Employee's Retirement 

System.    

(c) In addition to the exclusions identified in (b) above, membership of the retirement system shall not 

include:  

1) Any police patrol member hired between after February 1, 1999, and December 31, 2019, who did 

not elect to join the system effective January 1, 2020.     2) Any nonunion administrative technical or 

clerical employees of the city hired after October 1, 1999;    

3) Any member of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (A.F.S.C.M.E.) 

Local 894, hired after March 31, 2000;    

4) Any police command member hired between after February 1, 1999, and December 31, 2019, who 

did not elect to join the system effective January 1, 2020 

5) Any fireman member hired after October 1, 2000;    

6) Any nonunion administrative, technical, or clerical employee of the city hired before October 1, 1999, 

who voluntarily elected to leave membership of the retirement system on March 31, 2001, pursuant to 

the rules in  

effect at that time;    

7) Any member of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (A.F.S.C.M.E.) 

Local 894, hired before March 31, 2000, who voluntarily elected to leave membership of the retirement 

system on March 31, 2001, pursuant to the rules in effect at that time;    

8) Any member of the dispatch/clerical bargaining unit hired after July 2, 2001;    

9) Any member of the dispatch/clerical bargaining unit hired before July 1, 2002, who voluntarily 

elected to leave membership of the retirement system on June 30, 2002, pursuant to the rules in effect at 

that time;    

10) Any municipal service employee hired after September 30, 2006;    

11) Any municipal service employee hired before October 1, 2006, who voluntarily elected to leave 

membership of the retirement system.    

12) Any member of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees 

(A.F.S.C.M.E.) Local 894, hired before March 31, 2000, who voluntarily elected to leave membership 

of the retirement system on March 31, 2013, pursuant to the rules in effect at that time.    

(d) In all cases of doubt, the commission shall decide who is a member of the system within the meaning 

of this article. Section 5. Amendment of Sec. 2-214. “Policeman and Fireman Member Retirement 

Allowance” by adding a provision guaranteeing a minimum straight life pension taking effect January 1, 

2020 for police members 

Sec. 2-214. Policeman and Fireman Member Retirement Allowance 

Effective February 1, 1999 for patrol police members and February 1, 2000 for command police 

members, hired after October 1, 1982, retroactive to date of hire, shall receive a straight life retirement 

allowance and shall have the right to elect a retirement allowance under an option provided in section 2-

221 in lieu of a straight life retirement allowance. The straight life retirement allowance shall equal the 

sum of:  

(1) An annuity which shall be the actuarial equivalent of his accumulated contributions standing to his 

credit in the annuity savings fund at the time of his retirement; and   

(2) A pension which when added to his annuity will provide a retirement allowance equal to the number 

of years and months of credited service, not to exceed twenty-five (25) years, multiplied by two and 

one-half (2½) per cent, times the final average compensation plus the number of years and months of 

credited service in excess of twenty-five (25) years, if any, multiplied by one (1) per cent times the final 

average compensation.    

Maximum benefit is seventy-five (75) per cent of final average compensation. Members will make 

pretax contributions of five (5) per cent from all income included in the final average compensation. 

Effective February 1, 2000, a fireman member, retroactive to date of hire, shall be guaranteed a 

minimum straight life pension equal to:  



12  April 20, 2020 

(1) An amount equal to the sum of (i) the number of years, and fraction of a year, of his credited service 

not to exceed twenty-five (25) years, multiplied by and two and one-half (2½) per cent of his final 

average compensation, plus (ii) the number of years, and fraction of a year, of his credited service in 

excess of twenty-five (25) years, if any, multiplied by one (1) per cent of his final average 

compensation, but not to exceed seventy-five (75) per cent of final average compensation; less    

(2) An amount equal to the actuarial equivalent of his hypothetical accumulated contributions standing 

to his credit at the time of his retirement, such actuarial equivalent amount to be computed on the basis 

of the 1971 group annuity mortality table, with a five-year setback for females, and interest at the rate of 

six (6) per cent per year, compounded annually. Effective February 1, 2000, interest will be applied at 

five (5) per cent per year, compounded annually.    

Effective September 16, 2005, a fireman member who is an active member on October 1, 1982 who 

retires within sixty (60) days after the attainment of twenty-five (25) years of credited service as a fire 

member (provided said retirement occurs subsequent to September 16, 2005), or who retires subsequent 

to September 16, 2005 and no later than November 15, 2005, shall be eligible for a minimum straight 

life pension equal to:  

(1) An amount equal to the sum of (i) the number of years, and fraction of a year, of his credited service 

not to exceed twenty-five (25) years, multiplied by two and four-fifths (2.80) per cent of his final 

average compensation, plus (ii) the number of years, and fraction of a year, of his credited service in 

excess of twenty-five (25) years, if any, multiplied by one (1) per cent of his final average 

compensation, but not to exceed seventy-five (75) per cent of final average compensation; less    

(2) An amount equal to the actuarial equivalent of his hypothetical accumulated contributions standing 

to his credit at the time of his retirement, such actuarial equivalent amount to be computed on the basis 

of the 1971 group annuity mortality table, with a five-year setback for females, and interest at the rate of 

six (6) per cent per year, compounded annually.    

A command police member who is an active member on October 1982 shall be guaranteed a minimum 

straight life pension equal to:  

(1) An amount equal to the sum of (i) the number of years, and fraction of a year, of his credited service 

not to exceed twenty-five (25) years, multiplied by two and one-half (2½) per cent of his final average 

compensation, plus (ii) the number of years, and fraction of a year, of his credited service in excess of 

twenty-five (25) years, if any, multiplied by one (1) per cent of his final average compensation, but not 

to exceed seventy-five (75) per cent of final average compensation; less    

(2) An amount equal to the actuarial equivalent of his hypothetical accumulated contributions standing 

to his credit at the time of retirement, such actuarial equivalent amount to be computed on the basis of 

the 1971 group annuity mortality table, with a five-year setback for females, and interest at the rate of 

six (6) per cent per year, compounded annually.    

Effective October 16, 2001, a command police member who is an active member on October 1, 1982 

who retires within thirty (30) days after the attainment of twenty-five (25) years of credited service as a 

police member provided said retirement occurs subsequent to October 16, 2001 (but in no case have 

cumulative  

credited service in excess of thirty (30) years) will be eligible for a minimum straight life pension equal 

to:  

(1) An amount equal to the sum of (i) the number of years, and fraction of a year, of his credited service 

not to exceed twenty-five (25) years, multiplied by two and four-fifths (2.80) per cent of his final 

average compensation, plus (ii) the number of years, and fraction of a year, of his credited service in 

excess of twenty-five (25) years, if any, multiplied by one (1) per cent of his final average 

compensation, but not to exceed seventy-five (75) per cent of final average compensation; less   (2) An 

amount equal to the actuarial equivalent of his hypothetical accumulated contributions standing to his 

credit at the time of his retirement, such actuarial equivalent amount to be computed on the basis of the 

1971 group annuity mortality table, with a five-year setback for females, and interest at the rate of six 

(6) per cent per year, compounded annually.    

Effective January 1, 2020, for police members hired after February 1, 1999, shall be guaranteed a 

minimum straight life pension equal to: (1) An amount equal to the sum of (i) the number of years, and 



13  April 20, 2020 

fraction of a year, of his credited service, multiplied by two (2) per cent of his final average 

compensation, but not to exceed seventy (70) per cent of final average compensation. 

Notwithstanding anything elsewhere in this section to the contrary, effective February 1, 1990, as it 

relates to police or fire members and police department command officers, the city expressly reserves 

the right to waive, maintain or alter the provisions of this section, provided however, in no event shall 

any pension benefits set forth in this article be lessened or reduced as a result of waiving, maintaining, or 

altering any provisions thereof. 

Section 6. Amendment of Subparagraph (b) of Sec. 2-221. “Retirement Allowance Options” 

Sec. 2-221. Retirement Allowance Options 

(a) Subject to the provisions of subsection (b) hereinafter set forth, prior to the effective date of his 

retirement, but not thereafter, a member may elect to receive his retirement allowance as a straight life 

retirement allowance payable throughout his life, or he may elect to receive the actuarial equivalent, 

computed as of the effective date of his retirement, of his straight life retirement allowance in a reduced 

retirement allowance payable throughout his life, and nominate a beneficiary in accordance with the 

provisions of option 1, 2 or 3 set forth below. If a member does not elect an option prior to the effective 

date of his retirement, his retirement allowance shall be paid him as a straight life retirement allowance.  

(1) Option 1—Cash refund annuity.  Under option 1 a retirant shall receive a reduced retirement 

allowance payable throughout his life with the provisions that if he dies before he has received in 

payment of the annuity portion of his reduced retirement allowance an aggregate amount equal to his 

accumulated contributions standing to his credit in the annuity savings fund at the time of his retirement, 

the difference between his said accumulated contributions and the said aggregate amount of annuity 

payments received by him shall be paid to such person or persons as he shall have nominated by written 

designation duly executed and filed with the commission. If there be no such designated person 

surviving the retirant, such difference, if any, shall be paid to the retirant's legal representative.    

(2) Option 2—Joint and survivor allowance.  Under option 2 a retirant shall receive a reduced retirement  

allowance payable throughout his life with the provisions that upon his death his reduced retirement 

allowance shall be continued throughout the life of and paid to such person, having an insurable interest 

in his life, as he shall have nominated by written designation duly executed and filed with the 

commission prior to the effective date of his retirement.    

(3) Option 3—Modified joint and survivor allowance.  Under option 3 a retirant shall receive a reduced 

retirement allowance payable throughout his life with the provision that upon his death one-half his 

reduced retirement allowance shall be continued throughout the life of and paid to such person, having 

an insurable interest in his life, as he shall have nominated by written designation duly executed and 

filed with the commission prior to the effective date of his retirement.   (b) Notwithstanding anything 

elsewhere in this section to the contrary, effective February 1, 1990, as it relates to police members hired 

before February 1, 1999, police department command officers hired before February 1, 1999, members 

of the F.O.P. police/fire dispatcher/clerical bargaining unit, fire members and general members, and 

effective October 1, 1995 for hourly municipal members, and effective June 6, 1990 for salaried 

municipal service members, if said member has elected either an option 2 or option 3 prior to the 

effective date of his retirement and the retirant and the nominated beneficiary become legally divorced 

or the beneficiary nominated in accordance with either option dies prior to said retirant, then in either 

case the retirant's retirement allowance shall be paid to him as a straight life retirement allowance as of 

the date of the entry of the judgment of divorce or the date of death of said nominated beneficiary, as the 

case may be.  

(c) Effective September 16, 1996, all general city, police and fire employees who retired on or before 

January 31, 1990 and received a monthly pension payroll paycheck on September 15, 1996 with said 

retiree selecting either an option 2 or option 3 survivorship retirement benefit prior to the effective date 

of his retirement and the beneficiary nominated in accordance with either option having died prior to 

said retirement, then the retirant's retirement allowance shall be paid as a straight life retirement 

allowance to the retirant as of the date of the beneficiaries death or September 18, 1996 whichever date 

occurs later.  



14  April 20, 2020 

Effective September 16, 2004, all municipal service salary and hourly employees who retired on or 

before and received a monthly pension payroll paycheck on September 15, 2004 with said retiree 

selecting either an option 2 or option 3 survivorship retirement benefit prior to the effective date of his 

retirement and the beneficiary nominated in accordance with either option having died prior to 

September 16, 2004, then the retirant's retirement allowance shall be paid as a straight life retirement 

allowance to the retirant as of the beneficiaries death or September 16, 2004 whichever date occurs later. 

(d) A retroactive benefit shall be paid to all general city, police and fire retirees who have met all of the 

requirements of subsection (c) above from September 16, 1996 to date of the resolution passage by the 

city council. This benefit shall be paid in the month following city council passage of this Ordinance No. 

1028, passed Jan. 6, 1997. In no instance shall any retroactive straight life benefit be paid for any 

retirement time prior to September 16, 1996 or to a deceased retiree's estate if the retiree died prior to 

September 16, 1996.  

A retroactive benefit shall be paid to all municipal service salary and hourly retirees who have met all of 

the requirements of subsection (c) above that pertains to municipal service as of September 16, 2004. 

This benefit shall be paid in the month following city council passage of Ordinance No. 1204 . In no 

instance shall any retroactive straight life benefit be paid for any retirement time prior to September 16, 

2004 or to a deceased retiree's estate if the retiree died prior to September 16, 2004. 

Section 7. Amendment of Subparagraph (b) of Sec. 2-245. “Special Supplemental Retirement Benefit 

Allowance” 

Sec. 2-245. Special Supplemental Retirement Benefit Allowance 

(a) The provisions of this section shall be effective December 15, 1980, and shall be operative during a 

fiscal year if the (i) retirement commission adopts a resolution as of September thirtieth of each fiscal 

year to allocate monies to the special retirement reserve fund for the fiscal year under section 2-238, and 

(ii) the city council adopts a resolution declaring the provisions of this section in effect for the fiscal 

year.  

(b) Subject to the preceding restrictions, to be eligible for a special supplemental retirement benefit 

allowance, the retirant or beneficiary must have been in receipt of a retirement allowance for one (1) full 

calendar year as of the September thirtieth prior to receiving a retirement allowance. Police members 

hired after February 1, 1999, are ineligible for any improvement or supplemental payments of retirement 

allowances payable to retirants of the retirement system. 

(c) The amount of the special supplemental retirement allowance to be paid each eligible retirant or 

beneficiary shall be equal to one-half of the total monies credited to the special retirement reserve fund 

as of September thirtieth of each fiscal year under section 2-238 divided by the total number of years of 

credited service for all eligible retirants and beneficiaries of the system multiplied by each retirant's or 

beneficiary's respective years of credited service in the system.  

(d) Payment of the special supplemental retirement benefit allowance set forth herein shall be paid to 

each eligible retirant or beneficiary on December fifteenth of each year.  

(e) A request form shall be submitted to each eligible retirant or beneficiary, and shall be returned within 

thirty (30) days of mailing. Failure to return the form will eliminate the benefit payment to the retirant or 

beneficiary for that fiscal period.  

(f) In the case of a beneficiary, the effective date of the special supplemental retirement benefit 

allowance shall be the date of death of the member of the system or the date of retirement of the member 

of the system, as the case may be.  

(g) The commission shall evaluate the requirements of this section and the possibility of increasing 

benefits under this section each fiscal year.  

(h) Notwithstanding anything in this section to the contrary, no special supplemental retirement benefit 

allowance shall be made to any retirant or beneficiary in any fiscal year unless sufficient monies are 

available in the special retirement reserve fund to make the benefit payments provided in subsection (c).  

Section 8. Severability. 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only to the extent 

necessary to give this ordinance full force and effect. 



15  April 20, 2020 

Section 9. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect fifteen (15) days from the date of its passage 

by the Wyandotte City Council and the Ordinance or its summary shall be published in a newspaper 

generally circulated in the City of Wyandotte within ten (10) days after adoption. A copy of this 

Ordinance may be inspected or obtained at the City of Wyandotte Clerk’s Office, 3200 Biddle Avenue, 

Wyandotte, Michigan. 

 Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2020-97 FIRST READING #1486: CHAPTER 14 – GARBAGE, TRASH, WEEDS 

By Councilperson Schultz, supported by Councilperson Maiani 

BE IT RESOLVED that Council concurs with the proposed amendments to Chapter 14 Garbage, Trash 

and Weeds, and further, that the first reading of the Ordinance Amendment #1486 regarding the 

aforementioned section of the Code of Ordinances was held on April 20, 2020. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

2020-98 FIRST & FINAL READING #1487: LEGAL AFFAIRS SALARY 

By Councilperson Schultz, supported by Councilperson Maiani 

AN ORDINANCE ENTITLED AN ORDINANCE SETTING THE SALARY FOR THE 

DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS 

THE CITY OF WYANDOTTE ORDAINS: 

Section 1.  Salary for Department of Legal Affairs 

The salary for the law firm of William R. Look, P.C. as the Department of Legal Affairs for the City of 

Wyandotte shall be at a yearly salary of Eighty Thousand and 00/100 ($80,000.00) Dollars to cover the 

period from April 20, 2020 to April 19, 2022.  In addition, the law firm shall be reimbursed for 

miscellaneous costs and expenses incurred when acting as legal counsel for the City of Wyandotte. 

Section 2.  Severability. 

All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herein are hereby repealed, only to the extent 

necessary to give this Ordinance full force and effect. 

Section 3.  Effective Date. 

This ordinance shall take immediate effect.  This ordinance is deemed necessary for the immediate 

preservation of the public peace, property, health, safety and for providing for the usual daily operation 

of the City. This ordinance shall be published in a newspaper generally circulated in the City of 

Wyandotte within ten (10) days after adoption.  The ordinance shall designate the location in the City 

where a true copy of the ordinance can be inspected or obtained. 

Motion unanimously carried. 
 

REPORTS & MINUTES 

Beautification Commission  03/11/2020 

Cultural & Historical Commission 02/13/2020 

Fire Commission   02/25/2020 

Police Commission   02/25/2020 & 03/10/2020 

WMS Commission   02/26/2020 
 

REMARKS OF THE MAYOR, COUNCIL, & ELECTED OFFICIALS 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

2020-99 ADJOURNMENT 

By Councilperson Schultz, supported by Councilperson Maiani 

RESOLVED, that this regular meeting of the Wyandotte City Council be adjourned at 7:23 p.m. 

Motion unanimously carried.  

 

       

____________________________________ 

   Lawrence S. Stec, City Clerk 



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #1
Date: May 4, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held under the date of April 20, 2020, be approved as recorded, 
without objection.
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   



CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 5/4/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 2 

 

ITEM: Rezoning Request 141 Goodell, 136 Goodell and Vacant 1203 2nd Street

 

PRESENTER: Gregory J. Mayhew, City Engineer
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: N/A
 

BACKGROUND: At the January 13, 2020, City Council Meeting, Council referred the 
rezoning of the property at 141 Goodell, 136 Goodell and Vacant 1203 2nd Street (Lots 10 to 
12 Incl I. Witkowski Sub also Lots 1 to 6 Incl Noah Leblancs Biddle Ave Sub; The E 112.48 Ft 
of W 222.48 Ft of Lots 3 and 4 Exc s 50 Ft of lot 3, the Estate of Joseph Goodell deceased Sub; 
Lot 150 Assessor's Wyandotte Plat No. 8) back to the Planning Commission for consideration 
to rezone the property PD (Plan Development District).

On February 13, 2020, the Planning Commission held the public hearing.  The Commission 
recommends that said property be approved for rezoning to PD (Plan Development District). 
See attached Minutes and Resolution.

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: This recommendation is consistent with the 2010-2015 Goals 
and Objectives of the City of Wyandotte Strategic Plan in continuing effects to enhancing the 
community’s quality of life by fostering the revitalization and preservation of older areas of the 
City as well as developing, redeveloping new areas; ensuring that all new developments will be 
planned and designed consistent with the city’s historic and visual standards; have a minimum 
impact on natural areas; and, have a positive impact on surrounding areas and neighborhoods; 
fostering the maintenance and development of stable and vibrant neighborhoods. 

 

ACTION REQUESTED: Concur with recommendation from the Planning Commission 
to approve the rezoning of the referenced property to PD (Plan Development District). 

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: N/A
 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: Inform Owner of decision by City Council. Refer the rezoning 
to the Department of Legal Affairs to prepare the proper ordinance. 

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Rezoning 141-136 Goodell and 1203 2nd



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #2
Date: May 4, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
RESOLVED that the communication from the Planning Commission regarding the rezoning of the properties 
known as 141 Goodell, 136 Goodell and Vacant 1203 2nd Street, Wyandotte is hereby received and placed on 
file; AND

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Council approves the rezoning of properties known as 141 Goodell, 136 
Goodell and Vacant 1203 2nd Street (Lots 10 to 12 Incl I. Witkowski Sub also Lots 1 to 6 Incl Noah Leblancs 
Biddle Ave Sub; The E 112.48 Ft of W 222.48 Ft of Lots 3 and 4 Exc s 50 Ft of lot 3, the Estate of Joseph 
Goodell deceased Sub; Lot 150 Assessor's Wyandotte Plat No. 8) to Plan Development District (PD).

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that this request be referred to the Department of Legal Affairs to 
prepare the proper Ordinance.
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   































CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 5/4/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 3 

 

ITEM: 2020-21 City Hall Cleaning Contract Extension

 

PRESENTER: Gregory J. Mayhew, City Engineer
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 

BACKGROUND: The Department of Engineering has met with Veteran’s Cleaning regarding 
extension of their contract for the cleaning service of Wyandotte City Hall.  Mr. Greg Meyring, 
owner, has indicated Veteran’s Cleaning can continue providing cleaning services at the same 
unit rates set forth in the original contract for File # 4687 for the period of July 1, 2020 thru 
June 30, 2021.  The conditions of the contract extension would be set forth in the attached 
Amendment to the Contract.

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: This recommendation is consistent with the Goals and 
Objectives of the City of Wyandotte Strategic Plan in the continuing effort to enhance the 
quality of life for residents and the daily maintenance of Wyandotte City Hall.

 

ACTION REQUESTED: Approve contract extension as presented.
 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: The contract extension would be 
funded from account 530-444-825-215 in the amount of $56,762.00.

 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: If approved by Council, authorize Mayor and Clerk to sign 
said Amendment to Contract.

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. City Hall Cleaning Contract Extension 2020
2. Veterans Request for Extension 2020-21



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #3
Date: May 4, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
BE IT RESOLVED that Council hereby concurs with the recommendation of the City Engineer to enter into 
contractual agreement with Veteran’s Cleaning for the cleaning of City Hall from July 1, 2020 thru June 30, 
2021, and further authorizes the Mayor and City Clerk to sign said amendment; AND

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the work will be funded from account #530-444-825-215 in the amount of 
$56,762.00.

 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   







CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 5/4/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 4 

 

ITEM: 2020-21 Police and Court Cleaning Contract Extension

 

PRESENTER: Gregory J. Mayhew, City Engineer
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 

BACKGROUND: The Department of Engineering has met with Veteran’s Cleaning regarding 
extension of their contract for the cleaning service of Wyandotte Police Department and Court.  
Mr. Greg Meyring, owner, has indicated Veteran’s Cleaning can continue providing cleaning 
services at the same unit rates set forth in the contract for File # 4646 from July 1, 2020 thru 
June 30, 2021.  The conditions of the contract extension would be set forth in the attached 
Amendment to the Contract.  If additional cleaning services are requested, these services will 
be provided at a price as approved by the Police Chief.

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: This recommendation is consistent with the Goals and 
Objectives of the City of Wyandotte Strategic Plan in the continuing effort to enhance the 
quality of life for residents and the daily maintenance of Wyandotte Police and Court Building.

 

ACTION REQUESTED: Approve contract extension as presented.
 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: The contract extension would be funded from 
from account 101-301-825-420 in the amount of $44,930.00.

 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: If approved by Council, authorize Mayor and Clerk to sign 
said Amendment to Contract.

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Veterans Request for Extension 2020-21
2. Police Court Cleaning Contract Extension 2020-21



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #4
Date: May 4, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
BE IT RESOLVED that Council hereby concurs with the recommendation of the City Engineer to enter into 
contractual agreement with Veteran’s Cleaning for the Cleaning of the Police and Court Building from July 1, 
2020 thru June 30, 2021, and further authorizes the Mayor and City Clerk to sign said amendment; AND

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the work will be funded from account #101-301-825-420 in the amount of 
$44,930.

 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   







CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 5/4/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 5 

 

ITEM: Purchase Additional 96 Gallon Toters (Carts)

 

PRESENTER: Gregory J. Mayhew, City Engineer
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 

BACKGROUND: The City offers residents to rent 96 gallon toters (carts) for $60 for a two (2) 
year term. The Department of Public Service (DPS) desires to purchase an additional 144 carts
from Cascade Engineering of Grand Rapids, Michigan, to meet this demand. Cascade
Engineering has supplied the previous carts to the City. The selection of Cascade Engineering 
to supply carts to the City of Wyandotte was approved by City Council on November 22, 2010, 
based on extending a bid received by the City of Dearborn. Cascade is still the only 
manufacturer of waste carts in Michigan. The cost of $6,730.56 (144 x $46.74) to purchase 
these carts will be funded from the Solid Waste Fund. These carts will be black with the City of 
Wyandotte logo and a serial number stamped on the container and include a ten (10) year 
warranty.

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: This recommendation is consistent with the 2010-2015 Goals 
and Objectives of the City of Wyandotte Strategic Plan in creating fiscal stability, streamlining 
government operations, make government more accountable and transparent to its citizens and 
making openness, ethics and customer service the cornerstone of our City government.

 

ACTION REQUESTED: Approve the DPS to purchase 144 ninety-six gallon carts at a 
cost of $6,730.56 from Cascade Engineering

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: Purchase from Account No. 290-
448-850-540

 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: Place order with Cascade Engineering of Grand Rapids, 
Michigan.

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: None



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #5
Date: May 4, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL that Council concurs with the recommendation of the City Engineer to 
purchase 144 – Ninety-Six (96) Gallon Carts from Cascade Engineering of Grand Rapids, Michigan in the 
amount of $6,730.56 from Account No. 290-448-850-540. Each cart to be black with the City of Wyandotte’s 
logo and serial number to be on the cart and include a standard ten (10) year warranty.
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   



CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 5/4/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 6 

 

ITEM: Special Assessment District #944A

 

PRESENTER: Todd Drysdale, City Administrator
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: n/a
 

BACKGROUND: In accordance with Chapter XIV – Subdivision No. 2, Paragraph 222, 
Section 14 of the City Charter, sidewalk repairs have been made to public walks within the City 
and the cost of said repairs should be charged against the abutting properties.  The area of this 
work was Antoine Street to Ford Avenue from Electric Street to Biddle Avenue. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: The City is committed to maintaining and developing 
excellent Neighborhoods and the Downtown.

 

ACTION REQUESTED: Approve said charges to be placed as a special assessment 
against properties.

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: n/a
 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: Cost of the work shall be paid by the property owners within 5 
years beginning June 1, 2020.

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Special Assessment Roll District #944A



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #6
Date: May 4, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
RESOLVED by City Council that Council hereby concurs in the recommendation of the City Administrator 
regarding his communication to levy the cost of Special Assessment District #944A; AND
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Council directs the City Treasurer to collect said charges accordingly, and 
that the installments of each Special Assessment Roll shall bear interest at the rate of six percent (6%) per 
annum commencing July 1, 20202 said interest to be paid annually on the due dates of the principal 
installments of said Special Assessment Roll.
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   

























CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 5/4/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 7 

 

ITEM: Commercial Redevelopment District – 100 Maple (also known as 3040-56-58 - 1st 
Street), 130-134 Maple, and 140-142 Maple Street 

 

PRESENTER: Joe Gruber, DDA Director 
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 

BACKGROUND: 

In accordance with the Commercial Redevelopment Act, Public Act 255 of 1978, as amended, and a City Council resolution 
adopted on February 24, 2020, a public hearing to establish a Commercial Redevelopment District was just held this May 4th, 
2020. Establishing the District is the first step in the process of awarding a Commercial Facilities Exemption Certificate 
(CFEC). The attached Memo outlines how and why the properties (100 Maple (also known as 3040-56-58 - 1st Street), 130-134 
Maple, and 140-142 Maple) meet the eligibility criteria for establishing the District.

The next step involves the prospective developer filing a separate application for a Commercial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (CFEC) for each project, which is subject to approval by the 
Mayor and City Council.  The application will include detailed information on the proposed 
uses, construction activities, estimated costs, a construction time schedule, and economic 
advantages expected from each project and will be presented to the Mayor and City Council at 
a later date.

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: 

This action is consistent with the Goals and Objectives identified in the City of Wyandotte’s 
Strategic Plan 2010-2015 that identifies a commitment to: (1) downtown revitalization and an 
economic development strategy that emphasizes commercial expansion in the area; and (2) 
fostering the revitalization and preservation of older areas of the City as well as developing, 
redeveloping new areas.
Further, as stated in the DDA’s Mission Statement, “The Wyandotte Downtown Development 
Authority shall initiate and coordinate downtown development through design, business 
recruitment, promotion and the effective use of private and public space for an attractive, 
festive downtown atmosphere.”

 

ACTION REQUESTED: The DDA Director is requesting the Mayor and City Council to 
approve the attached resolution to establish a Commercial Redevelopment District.

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: 

Establishing a Commercial Redevelopment District allows a property owner to apply for a 



Commercial Facilities Exemption Certificate for up to a 12-year period after the completion of 
construction (and allows a construction period of up to two years).   

 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 

DDA Director, City Administrator, and City Assessor to administer the Commercial 
Redevelopment Act, Public Act 255 of 1978 Act, as amended, for any applications submitted 
for a Commercial Facilities Exemption Certificate (CFEC) in the proposed Commercial 
Redevelopment District (CRD).

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. 100 Maple_CRD-CFEC Eligibility Determination_2020.Feb.20



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #7
Date: May 4, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Commercial Redevelopment Act, Act 255 of 1978, as amended (Act 255), the City 
of Wyandotte has the authority to establish “Commercial Redevelopment Districts” within the City of 
Wyandotte on its own initiative or upon a request filed by the owners of 75% of the state equalized value of the 
commercial property located within a proposed district; and

WHEREAS, Ron Thomas, Rise Above Ventures, the property owner of 140-142 Maple and the prospective 
property owner of 100 Maple, has filed a written request with the clerk of the City of Wyandotte requesting the 
City to initiate action to establish a Commercial Redevelopment District on its own initiative for property at 
100 Maple (also known as 3040-56-58 - 1st Street), 130-134 Maple, and 140-142 Maple, located in the City 
of Wyandotte hereinafter described; and

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted a resolution on February 24, 2020, authorizing the initiation of the 
actions necessary to consider establishing a Commercial Redevelopment District pursuant to Act 255; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that property within the District is obsolete commercial property or cleared 
or vacant land which is part of an existing, developed commercial zone which has been zoned commercial for 3 
years before June 21, 1978, and the area is or was characterized by obsolete commercial property and a decline 
in commercial activity, and hereby determines that the District meets the requirements set forth in Section 
5(1)(a) of Act 255; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has provided for walkable non-motorized interconnections, including sidewalks 
and streetscapes throughout the District, as required in Section 4(2)(b)(iii)(B) of Act 255; and

WHEREAS, written notice has been given by certified mail to all owners of real property located within the 
proposed District as required by Section 5(3) of Act 255; and

WHEREAS, on May 4th, 2020, a public hearing was held and all residents and taxpayers of the City of 
Wyandotte were afforded an opportunity to be heard thereon; and

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it to be in the public interest of the City of Wyandotte to establish the 
Commercial Redevelopment District as requested, to foster revitalization, economic development, and the 
preservation of older areas in the downtown area;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Wyandotte that pursuant to the 
provisions of Act 255, Commercial Redevelopment District No. 17 is hereby established for the property at 
100 Maple (also known as 3040-56-58 - 1st Street), 130-134 Maple, and 140-142 Maple, said property more 
fully described as:



The following described parcel(s) of land situated in the City of Wyandotte, Wayne County, and State of 
Michigan, to wit:

3040 - 1st Street

LOT 9 PLAT OF PART OF WYANDOTTE, PART 2, BLOCK 71 T3S R11E, L57 OF DEEDS P5 
WCR

Parcel Number: 82 57 011 09 0009 000

3056 - 1st Street

N 22 FT OF E 35.33 FT OF LOT 10 ALSO N 24.67 FT OF W 94.67 FT OF LOT 10 PLAT OF PART 
OF WYANDOTTE, PART 2, BLOCK 71 T3S R11E, L57 OF DEEDS P5 WCR

Parcel Number: 82 57 011 09 0010 001

3058 - 1st Street

S 28 FT OF E 35.33 FT OF LOT 10 ALSO S 25.33 FT OF W 94.67 FT OF LOT 10 PLAT OF PART 
OF WYANDOTTE, PART 2, BLOCK 71 T3S R11E, L57 OF DEEDS P5 WCR

Parcel Number: 82 57 011 09 0010 002

130-134 Maple

LOT 11 PLAT OF PART OF WYANDOTTE, PART 2, BLOCK 71 T3S R11E, L57 OF DEEDS P5 
WCR

Parcel Number: 82 57 011 09 0011 000

140-142 Maple

LOT 12 PLAT OF PART OF WYANDOTTE, PART 2, BLOCK 71 T3S R11E, L57 OF DEEDS P5 
WCR

Parcel Number: 82 57 011 09 0012 000
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS



      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   



 1 

To: Joe Gruber, Director, Wyandotte Downtown Development Authority 
 

From:  Joseph M. Voszatka, SMOOTH Development, LLC  
  3166 Van Alstyne Street, Wyandotte MI  48192 

734-301-1282; jmvoszatka@wyandotte.org 
 

Subject:  Review of Eligibility Criteria to Establish a Commercial Redevelopment 
District (CRD) for the following properties: 100 Maple (also known as 
3040-56-58 - 1st Street), 130-134 Maple, and 140-142 Maple Street, 
Wyandotte, MI 

 

Date:  February 20, 2020 
 
 
Findings and Conclusions 
 

Based upon the information and analysis presented below, the aforementioned 
properties are eligible to be included in a CRD. 
 
Background Information and Analysis 
 

To determine if the proposed properties are eligible to be included in a Commercial 
Redevelopment District (CRD) under the Commercial Redevelopment Act, Act 255 of 
1978, as amended (“Act 255”), the following questions must be answered: 
 

I. Do the properties comply with the eligibility requirements to be included in a 
CRD? 

II. If a CRD is established, are there any additonal eligibility requirements to then 
apply for a Commercial Facilities Exemption Certificate (CFEC)? 

 
 

I. DO THE PROPERTIES COMPLY WITH THE ELIGIBILITY REQUIRMENTS TO BE 
INCLUDED IN A CRD? 

 

To be included in a CRD, the property must comply with any one of the requirements 
specified below from Act 255, Section 5(1)(a)-(d).  Generally, the property complies 
with Section 5(1)(a) below, but does not comply with Section 5(1)(b), (c) or (d).   

  
Excerpt from Act 255 
 

 
 

 
 



 2 

 
 

 
 

 
 
More specifically, Section 5(1)(a) specifies three (3) requirements, as follows: 
 

1. REQUIREMENT NUMBER 1: The existing commercial properties must 
comply with the definition of “obsolete commercial property,” as provided 
below. 

 
Excerpt from Act 255 

 
207.654	Definitions	

 

 
 
Act 255 does not specify the percentage of a building that must be “obsolete” for the 
property to be classified as “obsolete,” or  require an affidavit signed by a level 3 or 
level 4 assessor, that states that it is the assessor's expert opinion that the property 
is functionally obsolete and the underlying basis for that opinion, as required by the 
Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act, Public Act 146 of 2000, as amended (see 
Section 2 (f) of Act 146, and Section 2(u) and 13(h) of the Brownfield 
Redevelopment Financing Act, Public Act 381 of 1996, as amended, respectively).    
 
Consequently, it is a judgment to be made by the City Council when adopting a 
resolution to establish a CRD.  Generally, the reasoning to determine that the 
property is “obsolete” is as follows: 
 
A.  The condition of the properties at 100 Maple are impaired due to changes in 

design, construction, and technology for office, retail and/or mixed-use buildings 
(office and residential, etc.). 

B. The condition of the property at 140-142 Maple are impaired due to changes in 
design, construction, and technology for office, retail and/or mixed-use buildings 
(office and residential, etc.), and due to general neglect. 

 
  
2. REQUIREMENT NUMBER 2: The obsolete commercial properties must be 

“part of an existing, developed commercial…zone which has been zoned 
commercial …for 3 years before June 21, 1978 (for an effective date of June 
21, 1975).” 

 



 3 

All properties proposed for inclusion in the CRD have been part of an existing, 
commercial zone which has been zoned commercial for many decades prior to June 
21, 1975, so this requirement is met. 

 
3. REQUIREMENT NUMBER 3: The area is or was characterized by obsolete 

commercial property and a decline in commercial activity. 
	
Generally, the area complies with this requirement, as follows: 
	
A. The properties at 100 Maple have been completely vacant since at least 2018, 

and the property at 140-142 Maple has been completely vacant since at least 
2017, resulting in a decline in commercial activity. 

B. The decline in commercial activity at 100 Maple and 140-142 Maple has also 
resulted in a decline in potential commercial activity to the restaurant uses at 
130-134 Maple, due to decreased pedestrian and vehicular traffic.  

 
 

II. IF A CRD IS ESTABLISHED, ARE THERE ANY ADDITIONAL ELIGIBILITY 
REQUIREMENTS TO THEN APPLY FOR A COMMERCIAL FACILITIES 
EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE? 

 
The property must comply with four (4) requirements specified below from Act 255, 
Section 4(2)(b).  Generally, the property complies with all requirements, as 
detailed below.   
 
Excerpt from Act 255 
 

 
 

1. REQUIREMENT NUMBER 1: Per (b)(i) above, the property is located on 
property zoned “CBD – Central Business District,” which allows for a mixed use 
that includes high-density residential use.   

 
2. REQUIREMENT NUMBER 2: Per (b)(ii) above, the property must be in an area 

that complies with the Neighborhood Enterprise Zone Act (NEZ), which states the 
following, per MCL 207.772: 

 

 
 

 
 



 4 

The property, per (k)(i) above, is within the boundaries of a downtown district (the 
Wyandotte Downtown Development Authority).  Further, per (k)(iii) above, the 
property is in an area that is zoned and primarily used for business (because it’s 
zoned “CBD – Central Business District”).  Consequently, the property complies with 
the requirement of being located within a “qualified downtown revitalization district.’’  

 
3.  REQUIREMENT NUMBER 3: Finally, per (b)(iii) above, the local governmental 

unit must (A) establish and implement an expedited permitting and inspection 
process for property within the District, and (B) adopt a resolution regarding “non-
motorized interconnections, including sidewalks and streetscapes throughout the 
commercial redevelopment district.”  Generally, the local government unit 
complies with these requirements by adopting a resolution when the CRD is 
established that includes language providing for the requirements of A and B 
above.  The City Council has established eight (8) CRD’s since 2010 using 
standard language regarding “expedited processes” in its resolution establishing 
a CRD.  Further, the City Council has already provided for the “non-motorized 
interconnections…” and the appropriate language will be included in a future 
resolution to be presented to the Mayor and Council for establishing the CRD.   

 
 
Please contact me if you have any questions regarding any of the above or would like 
any additional information. 
 
c: Ron Thomas, Rise Above Ventures 



CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 5/4/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 8 

 

ITEM: Fort Street Sign Maintenance Contract

 

PRESENTER: Joe Gruber, DDA Director
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 

BACKGROUND: Wyandotte's Fort Eureka sign will be landscaped through the annual spring 
maintenance program sponsored by the DDA. In accordance with Wyandotte's approved 
procurement procedures, the DDA Director collected 4 verbal quotes and is recommending the 
hiring of P&P Landscaping, our low bidder and the company who has provided landscaping 
and maintenance services for the City and DDA at this site and others throughout the City for 
several years.

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: As stated in the DDA’s Mission Statement, “The Wyandotte Downtown 
Development Authority shall initiate and coordinate downtown development through design, business recruitment, promotion 
and the effective use of private and public space for an attractive, festive downtown atmosphere.”

 

ACTION REQUESTED: The DDA Director is requesting Mayor and Council to approve 
the contract and to authorize Mayor and Clerk to sign the Fort Eureka sign landscaping 
and maintenance contract with P&P Landscaping in the amount of $4,742.09.

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: Total seasonal contract amount is the same is it 
was in 2019 =  $4,742.09 from DDA's Fort Street Sign Maintenance Account #499-200-850-542

 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: DDA Director will manage and oversee Maintenance and 
Landscaping of Fort Street Sign.

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Fort Street Sign Contract 2020



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #8
Date: May 4, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Council concurs with the recommendation of the DDA Director and approves the 
Fort Eureka Sign Maintenance Contract with P&P Landscaping in the amount of $4,742.09 to be paid from the 
DDA's Fort Street Sign Maintenance Account #499-200-850-542; AND 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Council authorizes Mayor and Clerk to sign the contract.
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   









CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 5/4/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 9 

 

ITEM: Summer Event Cancellations

 

PRESENTER: 
Joseph R. Peterson, Mayor
Todd A. Drysdale, City Administrator
Justin Lanagan, Recreation Superintendent
Heather A. Thiede, Special Event Coordinator

 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: N/A
 

BACKGROUND: 
The Skip Clack Fishing Derby, The Independence Day Parade and the 59th Annual Wyandotte 
Street Art Fair are just weeks away and it is very clear to us it will not be possible for the events 
to take place. Public and employee health must come first and many factors have been 
considered in making this extremely difficult decision: 

1.  Social distancing guidelines would make such events difficult to host and it is uncertain 
whether these guidelines will be relaxed or removed by the dates of the events.  

2. It is uncertain whether people (guests, artists, vendors) be willing to attend the events 
considering the fear of Covid-19.

3. Some artists have already expressed a desire to attend the fair but currently have no 
means of paying the fees associated with the fair. Many people have been without work 
for some time. 

4. Expendable income is a huge driver of art, food, and drink purchases at the fair.  
Without work, people are trying to catch up on the basic necessities (shelter, food, 
utilities, etc.) and are likely to lack the expendable income to make this a financially 
successful Street Art Fair. 

5. Each event takes month of planning, securing artists, bands, food vendors, volunteers, 
purchasing supplies, advertising, etc.  These groups (for all events) deserve to have 
adequate advance notice on the status of the events in order to allow them to make 
decisions in a timely manner that will save all parties involved a lot of time and money.

6. Other local and major events have already been canceled including: Grosse Ile Island 
Fest, Southgate Heritage Days, Livonia Spree, Detroit Grand Prix, Traverse City Cherry 
Festival, and many others throughout the state, country, and world.

 
The parade and Art Fair Committees have been contacted regarding the potential cancellation 
of the events and are in support of the decision. The Special Events Office will coordinate the 



production of a section in the August Welcome to Wyandotte Magazine that will feature artists, 
businesses and vendors who would have been participants in the fair as well as create an online 
event that will encourage visiting these vendor’s online shops. We will also utilize our social 
media outlets to create activities that our community’s families can do at home to celebrate the 
4th of July, the Street Art Fair and summertime in general. 
 
We realize this is enormously disappointing news for the many people who participate and the 
hundreds of thousands of attendees to these annual city events, but sadly, these are unique times 
and this is the responsible thing to do.

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: To provide the finest services and quality of life.
 

ACTION REQUESTED: 
We request the approval to cancel the following city summer events: Skip Clacks Fishing 
Derby, June 6th 2020, Independence Day Parade, July 4th 2020 and the Wyandotte Street 
Art Fair July 8-11th 2020.

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: N/A 
 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: The Special Events Coordinator will forward the resolutions 
and all necessary documents to the necessary departments and inform all vendors and 
participants of these events. 

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: None



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #9
Date: May 4, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
BE IT RESOLVED that Council approves the request of the Mayor, City Administrator, Superintendent of 
Recreation and Special Events Coordinator to cancel the following city summer events:  
 
Skip Clacks Fishing Derby, June 6th 2020
Independence Day Parade, July 4th 2020
Wyandotte Street Art Fair, July 8-11th 2020
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   



CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 5/4/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 10 

 

ITEM: Sanitary Sewer Investigation

 

PRESENTER: Gregory J. Mayhew, City Engineer
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 

BACKGROUND: The sanitary sewer main lying east of the dwellings on the east side of Van 
Alstyne, from Elm to Eureka, was constructed over sixty years ago.  The sewer main is now full 
of water which is adversely affecting the performance and efficiency of the system.  In order to 
determine the cause of the water infiltration and develop a repair/restoration plan, the main 
needs to be systematically sectioned off, drained and a CCTV investigation performed.  Granite 
Inliner, formerly LiquiForce, has consulted with the Engineering Department, providing 
engineering expertise, and assisted in developing a plan to perform this investigation.  Attached 
is Granite's proposal to perform this work in the amount of $12,000.00.

Granite (LiquiForce) is a highly regarded contractor specializing in sewer investigations, and 
repair and rehabilitation projects and has performed sewer main cleaning, inspection and lining 
work for the City for several years, including the 2019 sanitary sewer lining project.

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: Committed to maintaining and developing excellent 
neighborhoods by: Matching tools and efforts to the conditions in city neighborhoods; tracking 
infrastructure conditions in all neighborhoods. The City will work to establish and sustain the 
quality of street lighting, sidewalks, curbs, gutters and pavement.  Continuing neighborhood 
renewal projects, where needed, in order to revitalize structures and infrastructures in 
residential and commercial areas.  

 

ACTION REQUESTED: Approve contracting with Granite Inliner in the amount of 
$12,000.00 to perform an investigation of the sanitary sewer main east of Van Alstyne 
from Elm to Eureka.

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: The sanitary sewer main 
investigation work will be funded from 590-200-926-310 in the amount of $12,000.00.

 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: If approved by City Council, authorize the City Engneer to 
sign the proposal and give Notice to Proceed to Granite Inliner.

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Wyandotte - Van Alstyne - Proposal



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #10
Date: May 4, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
RESOLVED that Council concurs with the recommendation of the City Engineer and approves the Contract 
with Granite Inliner, Romulus MI, to perform the sanitary sewer main investigation work in the amount of 
$12,000.00, which shall be funded from account 590-200-926-310; AND

BE IT RESOLVED that the City Engineer is authorized to sign said proposal with Granite Inliner. 

 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   



 

March 19, 2020 
 
City of Wyandotte 
3200 Biddle Ave. 
Wyandotte, MI 48192 
 
Attn: Mr. Scott Poling 
Re: Sanitary Sewer Investigation 
 
As requested, we submit the following proposal to complete the investigation of the sanitary sewers located 
on Van Alstyne between Elm and Eurecka.  We propose to utilize bypass / dewatering pumps to assist with 
the CCTV inspection / investigation.  Inspections will be completed per PACP standards by trained 
operators.  Copies of the inspections will be provided to you upon the completion of the project. 
 
Price 

Item Description Unit Est. Qty Unit Price Item Total 
1 Bypass / Dewatering DAY 2 $2,00.00 $4,000.00 
2 Pipe Cleaning DAY 2 $2,000.00 $4,000.00 
3 CCTV Inspection DAY 2 $2,000.00 $4,000.00 
      
 Total    $12,000.00 

 
 
Prices include all labor, materials and equipment to mobilize, perform the bypass/dewatering pumping and 
pipeline investigation and are based on (8hrs on site).  We have not made allowances for fees associated 
with obtaining traffic permits, the use of a water source (hydrant) or disposal of materials removed from the 
sewer during our operations.  Billing will be applied in ½ day increments. 
 
If you have any questions or wish to proceed please feel free to contact me directly.  We look forward to 
working with you in the near future. 
 
Sincerely, 

John Thompson 
Technical Representative 
 
 
Notice of Authorization 
This shall represent the Official Notice to Proceed authorizing Granite Inliner to complete the work scope 
described within this proposal per the price schedule and conditions detailed above.   
 
 
________________________________    ___________________ 
Name & Title        Date 
 
________________________________ 
Signature 



CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 5/4/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 11 

 

ITEM: 2nd Amendment to the Purchase Agreement for the properties at 1851-1857 
McKinley and 1865-1869 McKinley, Wyandotte  for the construction of two (2) new single 
family homes. 

 

PRESENTER: Gregory J. Mayhew, City Engineer
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: N/A
 

BACKGROUND: These properties were sold to Pizzo Development Group, LLC on 
 September 17, 2018, for the construction of two (2) single family homes.  The Purchase 
Agreement required Mr. Pizzo to complete both homes by December 31, 2019.  

Since this deadline was not met, Mr. Pizzo has agreed to pay an additional $3,000 per property.  
This increase will cover the 2019 taxes had the homes been completed by December 31, 2019.

Therefore, it is recommended that the Second Amendment be approved. 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: This recommendation is consistent with the 2010-2015 Goals 
and Objectives of the City of Wyandotte Strategic Plan in continuing effects to enhancing the 
community's quality of life.

 

ACTION REQUESTED: Adopt a Resolution concurring with recommendation. 
 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: Revenue of $6,000 in the Misc-Fee 
Sale of Property  Fund (492-000-650-040)

 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: Execute Second Amendment to  the Purchase Agreements. 
 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. 1853 McKinley 2nd Amendment
2. 1867 McKinley 2nd Amendment



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #11
Date: May 4, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
RESOLVED that the communication from the City Engineering regarding the City owned property located at 
Former 1851-1857 McKinley and 1865-1869 McKinley, Wyandotte is hereby received and placed on file; 
AND

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Council concurs with the recommendation and hereby authorizes the 
Mayor and City Clerk to execute the Second Amendment to the Purchase Agreements between the City and 
Pizzo Development Group, LLC for the former 1851-1857 McKinley and Former 1865-1869 McKinley.
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   



SECOND AMENDMENT TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF WYANDOTTE 

AND 
PIZZO DEVELOPMENT GROUP, LLC 

This Amendment to the Purchase Agreement between the CITY OF WYANDOTTE, 
"SELLER" and PIZZO DEVELOPMENT GROUP, LLC, "PURCHASER" dated May 17, 2018, 
and 1s1t amendment dated April 29, 2019, for the property at Former 1851-1857 
MCKINLEY NOW KNOWN AS 1853 MCKINLEY, Wyandotte, Michigan to amend the 
Purchase price to: 

Thirteen Thousand ($13,000.00) Dollars and 00/100 

1. Paragraph 13 is amended to read as follows: 
13. This Agreement is further contingent upon the Purchaser(s) undertaking 

development within 180 days from date of closing and completing 
construction (which is defined as obtaining a final Certificate of 
Occupancy for an owned occupied single family home) on or before June 
30, 2020. "Undertaking development" is defined as: the completion of a 
basement with poured floor and walls and inspection of foundations after 
backfill by the Engineering and Building Department pursuant to a 
building permit issued by the Seller(s) for construction of the home will 
all of the requirements described in paragraph 12. 

All work to be done pursuant to a building permit issued by the Seller(s) 
for construction of the home with all of the requirements described in 
Paragraph 12. 

If Purchaser(s) fail to undertake development or complete construction 
within the required time limits of this Agreement, Seller(s) have the 
option to purchase the property from Purchaser with all improvements 
for Eight Thousand Dollar and 00/100 ($8,000.00) (Purchaser(s) will still 
remain responsible to pay all obligations owing to Purchaser's lender). 
This will be a condition of the deed. In the event Seller(s) commences 
legal proceedings to enforce this requirement, Purchaser(s) shall be 
responsible to pay all of Seller's costs including its reasonable attorney 
fees. 

All other terms and conditions of the original Purchase Agreement shall remain in full 
force and effect. 

Dated this 

r 

67/ day of 0w/p./or 1/, 2020. 

PURCHASER(S): Pizzo Development Group, LLC 

Aton io ;Z ) ,  Resident Agent 

SELLER(S), City of Wyandotte : 

Joseph R. Peterson, Mayor Lawrence S. Stec, City Clerk 

Kelly A. Roberts
Typewriter
 March



FIRST AMENDMENT TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF WYANDOTTE 

AND 
PIZZO DEVELOPMENT GROUP, LLC 

FORMER 1851-1857 MCKINLEY NOW KNOWN AS 1853 MCKINLEY 

l .  Paragraph 13 is amended to read as follows: 

. . . 
13. This Agreement is further contingent upon the Furchaser(s) undertaking 
development within the following timeframe: 

Sewer to be completed by June 30, 2019 
Basement to be completed by July 31, 2019 
Certificate of` Occupancy issued on or before December 3 l , 2019 

All work to be done pursuant to a building permit issued by the Seller(s) for 
construction of  the home with all of the requirements described in Paragraph 12. 

I f  Purchaser(s) fail to undertake development or complete construction within the 
required time limits of this Agreement, Seller(s) have the option to purchase the 
property from Purchaser with all improvements for Eight Thousand Dollar and 
00/100 ($8.000.00) (Purchaser(s) will still remain responsible to pay all 
obligations owing to Purchaser's lender). This will be a condition of the deed. In 
the event Seller(s) commences legal proceedings to enforce this requirement, 
Purchaser(s) shall be responsible to pay all otlSeller's costs including its 
reasonable attorney fees. 

Paragraph 20 is added to the Agreement: 2. 
20. Purchaser will be responsible to protect adjoining public and private property 
from damage during construction. Protection shall be made to control water 
runoff and erosion during construction activities and before establishment olltur°` 
alter construction. The person making or causing an excavation to be made shall 
provide written notice to the owners of  adjoining buildings advising them that the 
excavation is to be made and that the adjoining buildings shall be protected by 
the builder. Said notification shall be delivered not less than 10 days prior to the 
scheduled starting date ollthe excavation. Further, Purchaser will be required to 
provide turf establishment bellore Final Certificate oflOccupancy will be issued. 
(NOTE: Sod, seed and mulch blankets or hydro-seed will be acceptable means of 
turf establishment.) 

All other terms and conditions of the original Purchase Agreement shall remain in f`ull force and 
effect. 

2? Dated this day of 

PURCHASER(S): Pizza Development Group, LLC 

7 2019, 

Antonio Pizzo, Resident Agent 

SELLER(S), City of Wyandotte: 

,,<é&Z- 
Joseph R. Peterson, Mayor Lav>A°ence S Stec, City Clerk 



OFFER TO PURCHASE REAL ESTATE 

Wyandotte 

1. THE UNDERSIGNED hereby offers and agrees to purchase the following land situated in the P! \  11nv llhlllr 

s Wayne 
Lot 132 except the south 26.5 and all of Lots 133 and 134 Fordnev's Subdivision as recorded in Liber 21 Page 26 of plats. 

being known as Former 1851-1857 McKinley know now as 1853 McKinley 
appurtenances, including all lighting fixtures, shades, Venetian blinds, curtain rods, 
awnings, TV antenna, gas conversion unit and permit 
pay therefore the sum of Ten Thousand ($l0,000.00) 
and zoning ordinances, if any, upon the following conditions, 

THE SALE TO BE CONSUMMATED BY: A 
(Fill out one of the four following paragraphs, and strike the remainder) 

city 
"`" of 
wage 

County, Michigan, described as follows: 
WCR 

Street, together with all improvements and 
storm windows and storm doors, screens, 

if any, now on the premises, and to 
Dollars, subject to the existing building and use restrictions, easements, 

Cash 
Sale 

Delivery of the usual Warranty Deed conveying a marketable title. Payment of Purchase money is to be 

A. Delivery of the usual Warranty Deed conveying a marketable title. Payment of purchase money is to be 
made in cash or certified check. 

Cash Sale 
with New 
Mortgage 

. 
ma in cash or certified check. Purchaser agrees that he will immediately apply for a 

mortgage in the amount of $ , and pay $ 
down plus ortgage costs, prepaid items and adjustments in cash. PLu'chaser agrees to execute the mortgage as 
soon as the m age application is approved, a closing date obtained from the lending institution, and, if 
applicable, final ' ection of the property approved by the Veterans Administration or F. H .  A. 

Sale to 
Existing 
Mortgage 

C. Delivery of the usua arranty Deed conveying a marketable title, subject to mortgage to be deducted from 
the purchase price. Payment the purchase money is to be made in cash or certified check less the amount 
owing upon an existing mortgag ow on the premises, with accrued interest to date of consummation, held by 

upon which there is unpaid 
Dollars, 

rtgage requires payment of Dollars 
month, which payments DO, DO NOT include prepaid taxes 

s held in escrow for the payment for any prepaid items, the 
. nment of same. The Purchaser agrees to assume 1 

Dollars, 
edging payment of that sum and calling for 

ears from the date of Contract in 
lars each, which include interest 

per cent per annum, and which DO, DO N include prepaid taxes and 

the sum of approximately 
with interest at per cent, which 
on the day of each and eve 
and insurance. If the Seller has any accumulated 
Purchaser agrees to reimburse the seller upon proper a 
pay said mortgage according to the terms thereof. 
D. Payment of the sum of 
in cash or city check, and the execution of a Land Contract ackno 
the payment of the remainder of the purchase money within 
monthly payments of not less than 
payments at the rate of 
insurance. 

If the Seller's title to said land is evidenced by an existing by an existing land contra with unperformed 
terms and conditions substantially as above ser forth and the cash payment to be made by t undersigned on 
consummation hereof will pay out the equity, an assignment and conveyance of the vendee's in est in the land 
contract, with an agreement by the undersigned to assume the balance owing thereon, will be accep d in lieu of 
the contract proposed in the preceding paragraph. If the Seller has any accumulated funds held in escr for the 
payment of prepaid taxes or insurance, the Purchaser agrees to reimburse the Seller upon the proper assisi ent 
0" same. 

Sale on 
Land 
Contract 

Sale to 
Existing Land 
Contract 

Evidence 
vf Title 

Time of 
Closing 

Pureh aser 's 
Default/ 
Seller 's 
Default 

Tifle 
Objections 

Possession 

2. As evidence of title, Seller agrees to furnish Purchaser as soon as possible, a Policy of Title Insurance in an 
amount not less than the purchase price, bearing date later than the acceptance hereof and guaranteeing the title 
in the condition required for performance of this agreement, will be accepted. 

3. If this offer is accepted by the Seller and if title can be conveyed in the condition required hereunder, the 
parties agree to complete the sale upon notification that Seller is ready to close, however, if the sale is to be 
consummated in accordance with paragraph B, then the closing will be governed by the time there specified for 
obtaining a mortgage. In the event of default by the Purchaser hereunder, the Seller may, at his option, elect to 
enforce the terms hereof or declare a forfeiture hereunder and retain the deposit as liquidated damages. 

4. In the event of default by the Seller hereunder, the purchaser may, at his option, elect to enforce the terms 
hereof or demand, and be entitled to, an immediate refirnd of his entire deposit in full termination of this 
agreement. 

5. If objection to the title is made, based upon a written opinion of Purchaser's attorney that the title is not in 
the condition required for performance hereunder, the Seller shall have 30 days from the date he is notified in 
writing of the particular defects claimed, either (l) to remedy the title, or (2) to obtain title insurance as required 
above, or (3) to refund the deposit in full termination of this agreement if unable to remedy the title or obtain title 
insurance. If the Seller remedies the title or shall obtain such title commitment within the time specified, the 
Purchaser agrees to complete the sale within 10 days of written notification thereof If the Seller is unable to 
remedy the title or obtain title insurance within the time specified, the deposit shall be refunded forthwith in full 
termination of this agreement. 

6. The Seller shall deliver and the Purchaser shall accept possession of said property, subject to rights of the 
following tenants: None 

If the Seller occupies the property, it shall be vacated on or before closing . 
From the closing to the date of vacating property as agreed, SELLER SHALL PAY the sum of $ NA . 
per day. THE BROKER SHALL RETAIN from the amount due Seller at closing the sum of S NA . 
as security for said occupancy charge, paying to the Purchaser the amount due him and returning to the Seller the 
unused portion as determined by date property is vacated and keys surrendered to Broker. 

THIS IS A LEGAL BINDING CONTRACT, IF NOT UNDERSTOOD SEEK COMPETENT HELP 



Taxes 
and 
Prorated 
Items 

Broker 's 
Authorization 

7. All taxes and assessments which have become a lien upon the land at the date of this agreement shall be 
paid by the Seller. Current taxes, if any, shall be prorated and adjusted as of the date of closing in accordance 
with due date ( Insert one: "Fiscal Year" "Due Date. " If let blank, Fiscal Year applies) basis of the 
municipality or taxing unit in which the property is located. Interest, rents and water bills shall be prorated and 
adjusted as of the date of closing. Due dates are August l and December l. 
8. It is understood that this offer is irrevocable for fifteen (15) days from the date hereof, and if not accepted 
by the Seller within that time, the deposit shall be returned forthwith to the Purchaser. If the offer is accepted by 
the Seller, the Purchaser agrees to complete the purchase of said property within the time indicated in Paragraph 
3. 
9. The seller is hereby authorized to accept this offer and the deposit of 0 Dollars 
may be held by him under Act No. l 12. P.A. of 1960 Sect. 13, (j) and applied on the purchase price if the sale is 
consummated. 

10. APPLICABLE TO F. H. A. SALES ONLY: 
It is expressly agreed that, notwithstanding any other provisions of this contract, the Purchaser shall not be obligated 

to complete the purchase of the property described herein or to incur any penalty by forfeiture of earnest money deposits 
or otherwise unless the Seller has delivered in the purchaser a written statement issued by the Federal Housing Commissioner 

setting forth the appraised value of the property for mortgage insurance purpose of not less than $ 
which statement the Seller hereby agrees to deliver to the Purchaser promptly after such appraised value statement is made available to 
the Seller. The Purchaser shall, however, have the privilege and the option of proceeding with the consummation of 
this contract without regard to the amount of the appraised valuation made by the Federal Housing Commissioner. 

It is further understood between Purchaser and Seller that the additional personal property listed herein has a value 
o f$  
11. The covenants herein shall bind and inure to the benefit of the executors, administrators, successors and assigns of 
the respective parties. 

By the execution of this instrument the Purchaser acknowledges THAT HE HAS EXAMINED THE ABOVE described 
premises and is satisfied with the physical condition of structures thereon and acknowledges the receipt of a copy of this offer. 

The closing of this sale shall take place at the office of City Engineer, 3200 Biddle Avenue. Wyandotte 
, However, if a new mortgage is being applied for, 

Purchasers will execute said mortgage at the bank or mortgage company from which the mortgage is being obtained. 
Additional conditions, if any: See Addendum for additional Paragraphs 12 through 19 and Signatures 

IN PRESENCE OF: L. s. 
Purchaser 

L. S 
Purchaser 

Dated 

A address 

Phone: 

BROKER'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF DEPOSIT 
Received from the above named Purchaser the deposit money above mentioned, which will be applied as indicated in 

Paragraphs 8 and 9 above, or will be returned forthwith after tender if the foregoing offer and deposit is declined. 

Address 
Broker 

Phone 
This is a co-operative sale on a 

By: 
basis with 

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 

TO THE ABOVE NAMED PURCHASER AND BROKER: 
The foregoing offer is accepted in accordance with the terms stated, and upon consummation Seller hereby agrees to pay 

the Broker for services rendered a commission of ( Dollars) ( per cent 
of the sale price), which shall be due and payable at the time set in said offer for the consummation of the sale, or if 
unconsummated, at the time of Seller's election to refund the deposit, or of Seller's or Purchaser's failure, inability or refusal to 
perform the conditions of this offer, provided, however, that if the deposit is forfeited under the terms of said offer, the Seller agrees 
that one-half of such deposit (but not in excess of the amount of the full commission) shall be paid to or 
retained by the Broker in full payment for services rendered. This commission will deducted from the amount to the Seller at time of 
closing. 

By the execution of this instrument, the Seller acknowledges the receipt of a copy of this agreement. 

IN PRESENCE OF: 
L s. 

Seller 

L s. 
Seller 

Address 

Dated: Pholle 
PURCHASER'S RECEIPT OF ACCEPTED OFFER 

The undersigned Purchaser hereby acknowledges the receipt of the Seller's signed acceptance of the foregoing Offer to 
Purchase. 

Dated L. s 
Purchaser 



ADDENDUM TO 
OFFER TO PURCHASE REAL ESTATE 

12. The closing for this Agreement is contingent upon the Purchaser(s) obtaining from Seller(s) the required building 
permit, used by the Engineering and Building Department, within 120 days from the date of Seller's acceptance of 
this Agreement for the construction of an owner occupied single family home, consisting the following features: 

Approximately 1,995 square feet with 3 bedrooms, and 2.5 baths as indicated on Attachment A. 
Full basement to be in accordance with Section R310-Emergency Escape and Rescue Openings in 
accordance with the 2015 Michigan Residential Code. Emergency Escape and Rescue Opening must 
have an approved cover. The basement is also required to have a Backflow Valve and Sump Pump. 
Exterior: Brick to the brick ledge (3 feet above ground) around entire structure and reminded of 
exterior to be vinyl sided. 
Attached garage. NOTE: Garage cannot extend more than 3 feet in front of the living quarters of the 
home. 

13. This Agreement is further contingent upon the Purchaser undertaldng development within 180 days from date of 
closing and completing construction (which is defined as obtaining a final Certificate of Occupancy for an owned 
occupied single family home) within 365 days from the date of closing. "Undertaking development" is defined as: 
the completion of a basement with poured floor and walls and inspection of foundations after backfill by the 
Engineering and Building Department pursuant to a building permit issued by the Seller(s) for construction of the 
home with all of the requirements described in Paragraph 12. 

Failure to undertake development and complete construction within 365 days as defined in Paragraph 12 will results 
in Seller's right to repurchase property including any improvements at the sum of Eight Thousand ($8,000.00) 
Dollars (80% of cash payment) herein to be evidence by a recordable document. 

14. All utilities are required to be underground. Purchaser will provide three (3) ducts, electrical, cable and telephone to 
a central location. If reusing existing sewer tap, line must be inspected or cameraed and documents submitted to the 
Engineering Department for approved use. If use is not approved, you must re-tap the main. 

15. The Purchaser is responsible for the cost of the Title Insurance Policy Premium, Closing Fee of $200.00 and Wayne 
County Mapping Fee. These charges will be paid at closing. 

16. Dirt shall be removed from the site at the Purchaser's expense. 

17. The property is being sold in "As Is" condition, without express or implied warranty. Purchaser understands that 
buildings were removed from the site and the City of Wyandotte accepts no responsibility for underground 
conditions or environmental conditions of the property. 

18. A condition of this Agreement is that the single family home must be sold by Purchaser(s) as an owner occupied 
home for a minimum of five (5) years consecutive years from the date of this Agreement and a Deed Restriction 
enforcing this condition will be placed on the Warranty Deed issued by Seller(s) to Purchaser(s). 

19. This Agreement is subj ect to the approval of the Wyandotte City Council. 

W 
@)Q)1X Dated: 

PIZZO DEVELOPMENT GROUP LLC, Purchaser(s): 

¢ 
Antonino PTzz6 urchaser 
349 Antoine, Wyandotte, MI 48192 

6 . 

1 

Dated: 

, _ \  _ 

'5I1'll% 

CITY OF WYANDOTTE, Seller 

»%' . , , `_  
oseph R. Peterson, Mayor 

/ I 

Lawvénce S. Stec, Cid Clerk 
3200 Biddle Avenue 
Wyandotte, Michigan 48192 

Legal Department Approval ma 7, 2.012 



DECO 
anwcsr 

V\NY\SNAKE 
s'lyLssnalo 

ii/scuanou 
s-1uxsso 

A11 
U 

wnzr 
DECO x murrow 

"R 
' \  

'N 

L 
nlocsaoa aoxverm 
PRO'V\DElSQ.FlPER30D5D 
rrllrncAREA 

asv:ul.r 
SHHGLES 

cnlc:lce1`\* 
_ _»~.- . 

f . \ 
. -- _|-* . . -  

OECD 

r LHLFLASIDIG 

FF soon 

K / 
ii-eonz r- . *al 
\.Apswno \ I 

/ 
r - - 

a:11uu o 

|. 

L_ m l I 
.LJ. 1. m I 

a 

\,.-.m 
LAP smwa w 

I n ! 
I ID 
EH 
'D 

[Ill nu II 
Q 

/ 

I I 

\~ Bison 
VENEER *I 

I 

` | 
-4 

*lu He 'Ill 
UP W 

FRONT ELEVATION 
SCALE 1H"= I-0° 

Una 14 

E 
:I z 

r-11° 12'-2' s-4' Y-T J rs' ! t 4 I 

2 HE. * .mm 
(2 

1Jl' 1...e1 a s  1 
S'-0' I 4-8' SL 

5 4 °  

111 I ;-m an 

'. 

r 

as 

I 

. Ur: 

I 

12 12 
m 11 114' LOL 

¢ 

\ 

£2 
bf 

\ 

a, e 

\ 

*8 
gr 

:- 

32° 
b 
F 

\ 

I? so 

\ I 
, \  
N 

a 

< 

C l i f f ,  T 
r r . l = g § . ¢ 5 | |  r m111n'LvL . 

Ur 

I I  
ll.11 Ur 

ii 
" " . . .  

-_\__ 
1. r 

44 
"l 

i 

f f f l r r r r  : \ "  
I I  I .|. It 

. - - - a. 
I 

r 
an ii no _ n - _ 1  

lr it I 5 

5-
0'

 1
5-

0'
 S

L.
 

E 
E 

l n at 

5 '  
"E 

I 
3 

Q: 

~. 

5 

. / 

=a 

6 

avi ,  

g i f . "  If 
5: 
i s w r a n .  

v 
11 1 

I 
I 
I 
a p. 

I \ \  . /  ; 
u 

I 

I 
I / ¢ /  

II 
' OOK 

gREAt ROOM 
\s1'Epcus 

we 
Mac | as 

I 

\ 

I 

rwsrn c Rscv 
VENT FP 

§ 
q e 

g 
" 

I 
- \  ... 

I 
) 

I / 
I / 
I § 
l =-§ So 

'53 
L _ _pa_ 

Se 

/ 
L___ 
I 

I 

'Q 
h 

,Q 
1'4'// 

/ f 
/ 

. t  \ \ 
| I | 

KITCHEN 

N 
I 

€01A\l$T FAN we un VENT 
to annum 

\ . 
; 21 I" 

4 up I I  

I = '* * 
_*.e 

. _  I ' v  
_ # -  

uuv I' v .  
I \ 

a* I ..II" 

;= 

__ i 
noo 

\ 

\ 

\ \  

gREAt ROOM 

'T u 

se 
Rscv 

= 

\STEP cos 

\ rwsrn c 
VENT FP 

§ 
q e / 

/ 
o 
o 
x 
0 
.a 
w vs i n _  
: 
E 

.l 
L___ 
l 

\ "  

'Q 
h 

. t  \ 
| I | 

I =1i*~ 

I ; / U 
s 

\ 

I 

l 
/ '  

I 

q 
1 f 

/ 

J 

J 

UI 

I nu 13.1 112' 

We I 
l . . . 

. 

. . . . . . 

DI 

5-0 . . . . . . . . . . . . 

1 
: 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. . . . . 
. 
. . 

I 

s-a I m 

BULT-IHS 

it \\ 
u 

» 

-1 : 

\ 

l 
_, . _ 1,5 

II \ f 

` un' . 
.n l 
II 

E , o  

\ . 
" I`~§ "Lutz" 

Q 
@ 
»z# 

BEDROOM 3 

BATH 

\ 

4> 
/ '=1\ 

:GYR 

up 
. ./ 

J 

i 
I 11111111 
I 

@| I 

I I  

I-F 

l . z-e 

vr 

. 1  

3-2 lf2° 

l I 
h e  I 

pa. 
4:r 

\ _ 

T# DOOR 
(21202 

\ / 

41r2 

2-0' I 5-0 
o DBL FUIG 

EQBL *Q 
I 

l3)1'IW8'LVI. _ _ _ = 
'S - : : = : =  g ;  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Hz 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
BEDROOM 2 

nuuesn oF loosens 
to BE 0E1E.=_\;!!IEJ 
BY sire encueean 

2 
$2

 

I ni- 
1 .. ............_... 

` | n 
E LAUNDRY 

I 

}»-UND LRCVT " , BOT a»AoF,,' 
HOW Ki I i h i - w :  

2 
; I l l  

mum OF RISERS 
TO BE nsrsnumsn 
av SITE ensues: 

E , o  

un' . 
.n l 

\ II 

'J I I \  . 
up ,, 

"our" 
) ` . .  * 4 

; I l l  

mum OF RISERS 
TO BE nsrsnumsn 
av SITE ensues: 

2 
u 

m.. »<~ 
, \  

M=e'x's1'cvpauuu 
WA.L.LSAll>CEl\liG 
comnaurongglggnui 

I no' 

5' 

Z f pn¢.l=ura am nm: 
nlussss e as o c 

\ . \ .=-----=. 

\ \ 
l \ .  up' 
. "" 
l 
if f 

DHGAIQAGE | 05 noon 

./ 
/ / 

. "`""é'é 2;KhAE§E`"`""§'""- 
a Q E : 2 : 

5' 
a 

a 
Z f pn¢.l=ura am nm: 

nlussss e as o c 
J 

l <> 
Z 11'£E§§£'"0 "8'é9 -' 

DHGAIQAGE 05 noon 

All A';¥A&§E"""'° .5 5 
2 : o I 

"-. . 

wn 
24 

if 6 

Q 
.I 

E x 
E / 
J 

I 

I 

\ 

a 
5 

I 

s I in 
II 

l» 
I I  

'L 

I 

§ 
1 

r 
ii 
0 

I I 

maxuz 

:E 
:= 
I I  

d 
SE 
2% 

E 

c 

sown . 
BACKDRAI 
ouvsn 

\ 

*8 
9 
B 

E 
\ 

L 
a £{=*£§** I 

1 -  I 

I 

F r !  : o r  

ss 

K ? .1' T-1' c 3-2' 5-8' Ra' 

1r-uxso'o1Luannrsn uuuu " an .4°LvL » . o 

4 . * .  :':1l.cEowI;cspF . 

, - - . IU-11' Ill»110 
• c r r 

I 

J I4-2* I 

r-1 

r 

I . I 

I2'-0' 

I 

zr-io' 
J e 

I llD' 

I 

or 

I 

§8 

n 

FIRST FLOOR PLAN 
5cAl£u4'-\'4r 

Anna 
1ST FLoor : 1995 s F 

GAnAo£»4n 
BAsEnEJI¥-2001 

GROSS -mass; 



SECOND AMENDMENT TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF WYANDOTTE 

AND 
PIZZO DEVELOPMENT GROUP, LLC 

This Amendment to the Purchase Agreement between the CITY OF WYANDOTTE, 
"SELLER" and PIZZO DEVELOPMENT GROUP, LLC, "PURCHASER" dated May 17, 2018, 
and 1s' amendment dated April 29, 2019, for the property at Former 1865-1869 
MCKINLEY NOW KNOWN AS 1867 MCKINLEY, Wyandotte, Michigan to amend the 
Purchase price to : 

Thirteen Thousand ($13,000.00) Dollars and 00/100 

1. Paragraph 13 is amended to read as follows: 
13. This Agreement is further contingent upon the Purchaser(s) undertaking 

development within 180 days from date of closing and completing 
construction (which is defined as obtaining a final Certificate of 
Occupancy for an owned occupied single family home) on or before June 
30, 2020. "Undertaking development" is defined as: the completion of a 
basement with poured floor and walls and inspection of foundations after 
backfill by the Engineering and Building Department pursuant to a 
building permit issued by the Seller(s) for construction of the home will 
all of the requirements described in paragraph 12. 

All work to be done pursuant to a building permit issued by the Seller(s) 
for construction of the home with all of the requirements described in 
Paragraph 12. 

If Purchaser(s) fail to undertake development or complete construction 
within the required time limits of this Agreement, Seller(s) have the 
option to purchase the property from Purchaser with all improvements 
for Eight Thousand Dollar and 00/100 ($8,000.00) (Purchaser(s) will still 
remain responsible to pay all obligations owing to Purchaser's lender). 
This will be a condition of the deed. In the event Seller(s) commences 
legal proceedings to enforce this requirement, Purchaser(s) shall be 
responsible to pay all of Seller's costs including its reasonable attorney 
fees. 

All other terms and conditions of the original Purchase Agreement shall remain in full 
force and effect. 

Dated this 61 J day <)f0»ze@Mvf , 2020. 

PURCHASER(S): Pizzo Development Group, LLC 

; Reg tAgent 

SELLER(S), City of Wyandotte : 

Joseph R. Peterson, Mayor Lawrence S. Stec, City Clerk 

Kelly A. Roberts_1
Typewriter
  March



unrnu I U  l'UKLQ11A§l1J KLAL LDIAIIL 

Wyandotte 

l. THE UNDERSIGNED hereby offers and agrees to purchase the following land situated in the 
city 

T.~ 7`5Lap of 
¥i*48€6 

, County, Michigan, described as follows: 
North 7 feet of Lot 130, all of Lot 131 and the south 26.5 feet of Lot 132 Fordney's Subdivision as recorded in Liber 21 Page 26 of 
plats. WCR 

Wayne 

being known as Former 1865-1869 McKinley know now as 1867 McKinley 

doors, screens, awnings, TV antenna, gas conversion unit and permit 
premises, and to pay therefore the sum of 

Street, together with all 
improvements and appurtenances, including all lighting fixtures, shades, Venetian blinds, curtain rods, storm windows and storm 

if any, now on the 
Ten Thousand ($l0,000.00) Dollars, subject to the existing building and use 

restrictions, easements, and zoning ordinances, if any, upon the following conditions, 
THE SALE TO BE CONSUMMATED BY: A 

(Fill out one of the four following paragraphs, and strike the remainder) 
Cash 
Sale 

Delivery QF the u3ua' Warranty Deed conveying a marketable Payment of Purchase money is to be 

A. Delivery of the usual Warranty Deed conveying a marketable title. Payment of purchase money is to be 
made in cash or certified check. 

Cash Sale 
with New 
Mortgage 

+it'e. . 
ma in cash or certified check. Purchaser agrees that he will immediately apply for a 

mortgage in the amount of $ , and pay $ 
down plus ortgage costs, prepaid items and adjustments in cash. Purchaser agrees to execute the mortgage as 
soon as the m age application is approved, a closing date obtained from the lending institution, and, if 
applicable, final ` ection of the property approved by the Veterans Administration or F. H. A. 

Sale to 
Existing 
Mortgage 

C. Delivery of the usua arranty Deed conveying a marketable title, subject to mortgage to be deducted from 
the purchase price. Payment the purchase money is to be made in cash or certified check less the amount 
owing upon an existing mortgag OW on the premises, with accrued interest to date of consummation, held by 

upon which there is unpaid 
Dollars, 

rtgage requires payment of Dollars 
month, which payments DO, DO NOT include prepaid taxes 

S held in escrow for the payment for any prepaid items, the 
. nment of same. The Purchaser agrees to assume 

Dollars, 
edging payment of that sum and calling for 

ears from the date of Contract in 
ars each, which include interest 

per cent per annum, and which DO, DO N include prepaid taxes and 

the sum of approximately 
with interest at per cent, which 
on the day of each and eve 
and insurance. If the Seller has any accumulated 
Purchaser agrees to reimburse the seller upon proper a 
pay said mortgage according to the terms thereof 
D. Payment of the sum of 
in cash or city check, and the execution of a Land Contract ackno 
the payment of the remainder of the purchase money within 
monthly payments of not less than 
payments at the rate of 
insurance. 

If the Seller's title to said land is evidenced by an existing by an existing land contra with unperformed 
terms and conditions substantially as above ser forth and the cash payment to be made b y t  undersigned on 
consummation hereof will pay out the equity, an assignment and conveyance of the vendee's in est in the land 
contract, with an agreement by the undersigned to assume the balance owing thereon, will be accep d in lieu of 
the contract proposed in the preceding paragraph. If the Seller has any accumulated funds held in escr for the 
payment of prepaid taxes or insurance, the Purchaser agrees to reimburse the Seller upon the proper assisi ent 
of same. . 

Sale on 
Land 
Contract 

Sale to 
Existing Land 
Contract 

Evidence 
of Title 

Time of 
Closing 

Purchaser 's 
Default/ 
Seller 's 
Default 

Title 
Objections 

Possession 

2. As evidence of title, Seller agrees to furnish Purchaser as soon as possible, a Policy of Title Insurance in an 
amount not less than the purchase price, bearing date later than the acceptance hereof and guaranteeing the title 
in the condition required for performance of this agreement, will be accepted. 

3. If this offer is accepted by the Seller and if title can be conveyed in the condition required hereunder, the 
parties agree to complete the sale upon notification that Seller is ready to close, however, if the sale is to be 
consummated in accordance with paragraph B, then the closing will be governed by the time there specified for 
obtaining a mortgage. In the event of default by the Purchaser hereunder, the Seller may, at his option, elect to 
enforce the terms hereof or declare a forfeiture hereunder and retain the deposit as liquidated damages. 

4. In the event of default by the Seller hereunder, the purchaser may, at his option, elect to enforce the terms 
hereof or demand, and be entitled to, an immediate refund of his entire deposit in full termination of this 
agreement. 

5. If objection to the title is made, based upon a written opinion of Purchaser's attorney that the title is not in 
the condition required for performance hereunder, the Seller shall have 30 days from the date he is notified in 
writing of the particular defects claimed, either (1) to remedy the title, or (2) to obtain title insurance as required 
above, or (3) to refund the deposit in full termination of this agreement if unable to remedy the title or obtain title 
insurance. If the Seller remedies the title or shall obtain such title commitment within the time specified, the 
Purchaser agrees to complete the sale within 10 days of written notification thereof If the Seller is unable to 
remedy the title or obtain title insurance within the time specified, the deposit shall be refunded forthwith in full 
termination of this agreement. 

6. The Seller shall deliver and the Purchaser shall accept possession of said property, subject to rights of the 
following tenants: None 

If the Seller occupies the property, it shall be vacated on or before closing . 
From the closing to the date of vacating property as agreed, SELLER SHALL PAY the sum of S NA . 
per day. THE BROKER SHALL RETAIN from the amount due Seller at closing the sum of $ NA . 
as security for said occupancy charge, paying to the Purchaser the amount due him and returning to the Seller the 
unused portion as determined by date property is vacated and keys surrendered to Broker. 

THIS IS A LEGAL BINDING CONTRACT, IF NOT UNDERSTOOD SEEK COMPETENT HELP 



Tues 
and 
Prnralerl 
Items 

Broker 's 
Amhorizafion 

7. All taxes and assessments which have become it lien upon the land m the date of this agreement shall he 
paid by the Seller. Current taxes. if any. shall be prorated and adjusted as of the date of closing in accordance 
with due date ( Insert one: "Fiscal Year" "Due Dum. " lllleR blank. Fiscal l'¢'¢u-applies) basis of the 
municipality or taxing unit in which the property is located. Interest, rents arid water bills shall be prorated and 
adjusted as of the date of closing. Due dates are August I and December L 
8. lt is understood that this offer is irrevocable Tor fifteen (IS) days from the date hereof. and if not accepted 
by the Seller within that time. the deposit shall be returned tbrthwith to the Purchaser. If the offer is accepted by 
the Seller. the Purchaser agrees to complete the purchase of said property within the time indicated in Paragraph 
3. 
9. The seller is hereby authorized to accept this alTer and the deposit of .___________Q____ __ Dollars 
may be held by him under Act No. l I". P.A. of l 9(1() Sect. 13. tit and npplied on the purchase price if` the sale is I consummated. 

IO. APPLICABLE 'ro F. II. A. SALES ONLY: 
lt is expressly agreed that. notwithstanding any other provisions of this contract. the Purchaser shnll not be obligated 

to complete the purchase of the property deserihcd herein or to incur any penalty by liwrteiture ofeaniest money deposits 
or otherwise unless the Seller has delivered in the purchaser a written statement issued by the Federal Housing Commissioner 

setting forth the appraised value of the property for mortgage insurance purpose of not less than $ ____ __ 
which statement the Seller hereby agrees to deliver to the Purchaser promptly after such appraised value statement is made available to 
the Seller. The Purchaser shall., however, have the privilege and the option of proecediug with the consummation of 
this contract without regard to the amount of the appraised valuation made by the Federal Housing Commissioner. 

It is further understood between Purchaser and Seller that the additional personal property listed herein has a value 
old _._____ 

I l. The covenants herein shall hind and inure lo the hcnefil of the executors. administrators, successors am assigns of 
the respective parties. 

By the execution of this instmmcnt the Purchaser acknowledges THAT Ill" llAs EXAMINED THE ABOVE described 
premises and is satisfied with the physical condition of' structures thereon and acknowledges the receipt of a copy of this offer. 

The closing olltl\is sale shall take place at the oflicc of' _§jyL1$r 320_0_B_ iddle Avenue, Wyandotte __ __ However. Illa new mortgage is being applied for. 
Purchasers will execute said mortgage at the hank or mortgage company front which the mortgage is being obtained. 
Additional conditions. ill any: See Addendum for additional Paragraphs 12 through 19 and Signatures 

IN PRESENCE OF: L. s. 
Purchaser 

Purclmser 

Dated 

al rlf[I'c.v.v 

I'/umcz: 

BROKhRIS A(IKNO\Vl.l".DGM ENT oF DEPOSIT 
Received from the above named Purchaser the deposit lmmey above mentioned. which will be applied as indicated in 

Paragraphs 8 and 9 above. or will be rctumcd forthwith after tender if the foregoing offer and deposit is declined. 

A dd/'css 
8l'()/(Ur 

PlION? 

This is a co-operative sale on a 
By: 

basis with 

ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 

70 7115 .4 BOVE NA MEI) P( lR(llI.4SER ANI) I.lROA'hlR.' 
The tbregoing otter is accepted in accordance with the tcnns stated. and upon consummation Seller hereby agrees to pay 

the Broker for services rendered a commission of( . . _  Dollars) ( per cent 
of the sale price). which shall be due and payable at the time set in said ofter tor the consummation of' the sale. or in 
unconsummalcd. at the time otlScllerls election to relimd the deposit. or of Scllcrls or Purehascrls failure. inability or refusal to 
perform the conditions of' this offer: provided. however. that ill the deposit is tbrleitcd under the tennis of said oiler. the Seller agrees 
that one-halfof such deposit (but not in excess of the amount of the lull commission) shall be paid to or 
retained by the Broker in full payment for services rendered. This commission will deducted t`rom the amount to the Seller at time of 
closing. 

By the execution of this instrument. the Seller acknowledges the receipt of at copy of this agreement. 

IN PRESENCE OF: 
L s. 

St'//UI' 

L s. 
Sr'll<'r 

,41/(/1'('.\x 

l)arc'c/5 Pllom' 
PIJRCHASER'S RECEIPT OF ACCEPTED OFFER 

The undersigned Purchaser hereby acknowledges the receipt of the Sellcrls signed acceptance of the foregoing Offer to 
Purchase. 

Durum L. s 
Puwlmscr 



ADDENDUM TO 
OFFER TO PURCHASE REAL ESTATE 

The closing for this Agreement is contingent upon the Purchaser(s) obtaining from Seller(s) the required building 
permit, used by the Engineering and Building Department, within 120 days from the date of Seller's acceptance of 
this Agreement for the construction of an owner occupied single family home, consisting the following features: 

. 
Approximately 1,995 square feet with 3 bedrooms., and 2.5 baths as indicated OD Attachment A. 
Full basement to be in accordance with Section R310-Emergency Escape and Rescue Openings in 
accordance with the 2015 Michigan Residential Code. Emergency Escape and Rescue Opening must 
have an approved cover. The basement is also required to have a Backflow Valve and Sump Pump. 
Exterior: Brick to the brick ledge (3 feet above ground) around entire structure and reminded of 
exterior to be vinyl sided. 
Attached garage. NOTE: Garage cannot extend more than 3 feet in front of the living quarters of the 
home. 

13. This Agreement is further contingent upon the Purchaser undertaldng development within 180 days from date of 
closing and completing construction (which is defined as obtaining a final Certificate of Occupancy for an owned 
occupied single family home) within 365 days from the date of closing. "Undertaking development" is defined as: 
the completion of a basement with poured floor and walls and inspection of foundations after backfill by the 
Engineering and Building Department pursuant to a building permit issued by the Seller(s) for construction of the 
home with all of the requirements described in Paragraph 12. 

Failure to undertake development and complete construction within 365 days as defined in Paragraph 12 will results 
in Seller's right to repurchase property including any improvements at the sum of Eight Thousand ($8,000.00) 
Dollars (80% of cash payment) herein to be evidence by a recordable document. 

14. All utilities are required to be underground. Purchaser will provide three (3) ducts, electrical, cable and telephone to 
a central location. If reusing existing sewer tap, line must be inspected or cameraed and documents submitted to the 
Engineering Department for approved use. If use is not approved, you must re-tap the main. 

15. The Purchaser is responsible for the cost of the Title Insurance Policy Premium, Closing Fee of $200.00 and Wayne 
County Mapping Fee. These charges will be paid at closing. 

16. Din shall be removed from the site at the Purchaser's expense. 

17. The property is being sold in "As Is" condition, without express or implied warranty. Purchaser understands that 
buildings were removed from the site and the City of Wyandotte accepts no responsibility for underground 
conditions or environmental conditions of the property. 

18. A condition of this Agreement is that the single family home must be sold by Purchaser(s) as an owner occupied 
home for a minimum of five (5) consecutive years from the date of this Agreement and a Deed Restriction enforcing 
this condition will be placed on the Warranty Deed issued by Seller(s) to Purchaser(s). 

19. This Agreement is subject to the approval of the Wyandotte City Council. 

/ 
Dated : 5 @  I Y 

PIZZO DEVELOPMENT GROUP LLC, Purchaser(s): 

Antonino Pizzo Purchaser 
349 Antoine, Wyandotte, MI 48192 

CITY OF WYANDOTTE, Seller 

Dated: Sfvlllq) 

» - 9 ?  
Joseph R. Peterson, Mayor 

L /  

aw)/ence S. Stoic, City Clerk 
320'0 Biddle Avenue 
Wyandotte, Michigan 48192 

Legal Department Approval we( H 1018 



T 
g 

;§ a s  
g 

I 
I 

2 T' 
in 

L ,3 
'°§ 

ATTACHMENT A 

1 

<4 JFCO - 
L, amcvsv -- 
I 

i ' 
: ,ex 

¢<' 
I_,......-J . 

I 
II 
I 

| 

I 
-ui.-I 

I \  

:I / .  

l -  'H' r 
.f 

I 
1 

.r 

-;"\.. 
\ To 

.I \ 

M ` \  `\ `\-. "~._ ` \  " -. -~*\* 
L 

.':":» - _ _ . r . . . . . _ .  _ 
¢ - n - _ - .  r 

:L ;J Eli" Tl 
'-n " -per . EH" 

u l; 
.JI L_-..__J if 

El
 

§2
 

3 

FRONT ELEVATION_ 
SCALE \ 4 ~ -  vo' 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
x 

T 
4 

' I  
I 

I 
c 
'W 

T 
I 

._.| 

I 

b 
i 

a 
5' 

I 

11*H 
'Q 

i 

I l 
I 
I 

E! l of 

I 
I 

I r 

Q I l 
J 
El 

l 
J i '  

In *a 
13 .Li  iii 

I 

: 
1 2 

I 

I I 1  

I r e  

:v= Hr snssmnmno u I 
'nus<tsq:a~o< n 

coyfaso PATIO 5-- 
Chi g' 211 

o . =.. _, n L I 

14" 

I 

I F? 
II ;: 4*~ 

1 
,J $19900 I \ . . 11 

-/ 'T" 
- f l:>JI: 

IU°1I»-l"SL 
1: 

" » \ |  ll.1°l.vI. 

as .or 

s-:- so. 

._-,ul I 
4-U I 4-I' s- 

-*
x 

ll§~
L 

l 

...
 

7 
"_

: 
4.5

 

UQ' 

i 
E6nlr.s 
121 l u  1!.1°l1A 
A 3' I \ 5 $1 

. r 1 r  

1HiIIl;u;;n NEALa<;L:M I§8§u& 
SIEUEUG 

l==n.~asdnt:1 

QLUEN 

m :ru -.041 voulswaa 
I 

I I I  IC\.'G I 

I 

ew Q 

.i I 
1 

1 
»i 

I 

L is 
.i I 

1 y 
H 

I 

T! 
| 

.. _ 
I 

'Q 

n l 91 '- r- . 

E! 
l 

\:=;. \ .. I 
w l ; " n l  

1 

»i 
ha!n I 

BULLNS 

.v 

* . 
» 

la.- 

*.. 

s I 
\hl2l L' 

so \ 

w.1.Q, 

-.
r 

'I 

r a §'
't

 
§ 

5 

VC
# 

uuvullrofnliuu 
roles:-mmnnsn 
B* inf ENGNEFR 

R Q E 

g g l g E I D E ! !  

2 

v 1: 

_M o 

o 

o 

'H n 

hwlal :Raman 
lOPED£lER'¢=°LFL 
Uwllctnuuealk 

par pmmmnn 
'l=ua5£s 'J H' o I: 

- 

a =-4 
I 
! .: 

C *  - a - 

-E'II\')!1 D atrium W mull!! ragvsnvivln 
DAUFER 

r 

18 

I I 
1tr.1» 

Ir4r r n.rr 0 n ams! o-rn 
la; Ur un. 

0I4-fceow II. CSPU L 
2 l .  IQ 

Ur»°° 

\ 

FIRST FLOOR PLAN 
'C°*T§ new ref 



CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 5/4/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 12 

 

ITEM: Sale of former 3367 12th Street (30' x 100')

 

PRESENTER: Gregory J. Mayhew, City Engineer
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 

BACKGROUND: The City owns the vacant property at the former 3367 12th Street.  Attached 
for your approval is a Purchase Agreement to sell 7.5 feet of the property to the adjacent 
property owner at 3373 12th Street, Paul S. Puste, for the amount of $375.00.  The combination 
of the two (2) lots will result in one (1) lot measuring 52.5' x 123'.   The remaining 22.5 feet has 
been offered to the adjacent property owner at 3361 12th Street. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: This is consistent with the 2010-2015 Goals and Objectives of 
the City of Wyandotte Strategic Plan in the commitment to maintaining and developing 
excellent neighborhoods by; matching tools and efforts to the conditions in city neighborhoods 
and continuing neighborhood renewal projects, where needed, in order to revitalize structures 
and infrastructures in residential and commercial areas.

 

ACTION REQUESTED: Approve the Purchase Agreement to sell 7.5 feet of the former 
3367 12th Street  to the adjacent property owner at 3373 12th Street in the amount of 
$375.00 ($50 per front foot). 

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: Revenue of $375.00 in the TIFA 
Consolidated Fund (492-000-650-040).

 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: The Neighborhood Services Coordinator will coordinate the 
closing with the Department of Legal Affairs upon approval of the Purchase Agreement. 

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Purchase Agreement and Map Former 3367 12th Street



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #12
Date: May 4, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
Council concurs with the recommendation of the City Engineer regarding the sale of a portion of the former 
3367 12th Street, Wyandotte; AND

BE IT RESOLVED that Council accepts the offer from Paul S. Puste, 3373 12th Street, to acquire 7.5 feet of 
the former 3367 12th Street for the amount of $375.00; AND

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Department of Legal Affairs is hereby directed to prepare the 
necessary documents and the Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized to sign said documents. 
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   









CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 5/4/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 13 

 

ITEM: Sale of former 316 Clark (50' x 102')

 

PRESENTER: Gregory J. Mayhew, City Engineer
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: N/A
 

BACKGROUND: The City owns the former 316 Clark, fifty (50) feet wide, located on Lots 
33 and 34, The Alkali Subdivision.  Attached for your approval are two (2) Purchase 
Agreements:

1.  Sell Lot 33 the east twenty five (25) feet, to adjacent property owner at 210 Clark, Antonino 
Vitale, for the amount of $2,500.  

2.  Sell Lot 34, the west twenty five (25) feet, to the adjacent property owner at 334 Clark, K & 
L Properties, for the amount of $2,500. 

The sales price of $100 per front foot is consistent with the Council Resolution dated 3/8/2011 
regarding sale of City property to adjacent commercial and/or industrial uses. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: This is consistent with the 2010-2015 Goals and Objectives of 
the City of Wyandotte Strategic Plan in the commitment to maintaining and developing 
excellent neighborhoods by; matching tools and efforts to the conditions in city neighborhoods 
and continuing neighborhood renewal projects, where needed, in order to revitalize structures 
and infrastructures in residential and commercial areas.

 

ACTION REQUESTED: Approve the Purchase Agreements to sell the former 316 Clark 
to the adjacent property owners for $100 per front foot. 

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: Revenue of $5,000.00 in the TIFA 
Consolidated Fund (492-000-650-040).

 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: The Neighborhood Services Coordinator will coordinate the 
closing with the Department of Legal Affairs upon approval of the Purchase Agreement. 

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Purchase Agreements Former 316 Clark



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #13
Date: May 4, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
Council concurs with the recommendation of the City Engineer regarding the sale of former 316 Clark, 
Wyandotte; AND

BE IT RESOLVED that Council accepts the offer from Antonino Vitale, 210 Clark, to acquire Lot 33, the east 
twenty five (25) feet, of the former 316 Clark for the amount of $2,500.00; AND

BE IT RESOLVED that Council accepts the offer from K & L Property, LLC, 334 Clark, to acquire Lot 34, the 
west twenty five (25) feet, of the former 316 Clark for the amount of $2,500.00; AND

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Department of Legal Affairs is hereby directed to prepare the 
necessary documents and the Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized to sign said documents. 
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   













CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 5/4/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 14 

 

ITEM: Sale of former 1331 Walnut (7.5' x 120')

 

PRESENTER: Gregory J. Mayhew, City Engineer
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: N/A
 

BACKGROUND: The City owns a portion of the former 1331 Walnut.  Attached for your 
approval is a Purchase Agreement to sell 7.5 feet of the property to the adjacent property 
owner(s) at 1337 Walnut, Carol Orlando, for the amount of $375.00.  The combination of the 
two (2) lots will result in one (1) lot measuring 37.5' x 120'.   The remaining 22.5 feet was sold 
the adjacent property owner(s) at 1327 Walnut. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: This is consistent with the 2010-2015 Goals and Objectives of 
the City of Wyandotte Strategic Plan in the commitment to maintaining and developing 
excellent neighborhoods by; matching tools and efforts to the conditions in city neighborhoods 
and continuing neighborhood renewal projects, where needed, in order to revitalize structures 
and infrastructures in residential and commercial areas.

 

ACTION REQUESTED: Approve the Purchase Agreement to sell the West 7.5 feet of the 
former 1331 Walnut to the adjacent property owner(s) at 1337 Walnut in the amount of 
$375.00 ($50 per front foot). 

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: Revenue of $375.00 in the TIFA 
Consolidated Fund (492-000-650-040).

 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: The Neighborhood Services Coordinator will coordinate the 
closing with the Department of Legal Affairs upon approval of the Purchase Agreement. 

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Purchase Agreement Former 1331 Walnut



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #14
Date: May 4, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
Council concurs with the recommendation of the City Engineer regarding the sale of a portion of the former 
1331 Walnut, Wyandotte; AND

BE IT RESOLVED that Council accepts the offer from Carol Orlando, 1337 Walnut, to acquire the west 7.5 
feet of the former 1331 Walnut from for the amount of $375.00; AND

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Department of Legal Affairs is hereby directed to prepare the 
necessary documents and the Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized to sign said documents. 
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   









CITY OF WYANDOTTE
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

 
MEETING DATE: 5/4/2020 AGENDA ITEM # 15 

 

ITEM: Sale of former Vacant Property on Sycamore (10' x 35')

 

PRESENTER: Gregory J. Mayhew, City Engineer
 

INDIVIDUALS IN ATTENDANCE: N/A
 

BACKGROUND: The City acquired this property known as Vacant Sycamore (10' x 35' ) via 
Quit Claim Deed from Wayne County for non-payment of the taxes.  Attached for your 
approval is a Purchase Agreement to sell said property to the adjacent property owner at 352-
358 Sycamore, Mr. Adam Aitchison, for the amount of $125.00.  The addition of the 10' x 35' 
parcel will improve the property at 352-358 Sycamore.

 

STRATEGIC PLAN/GOALS: This is consistent with the 2010-2015 Goals and Objectives of 
the City of Wyandotte Strategic Plan in the commitment to maintaining and developing 
excellent neighborhoods by; matching tools and efforts to the conditions in city neighborhoods 
and continuing neighborhood renewal projects, where needed, in order to revitalize structures 
and infrastructures in residential and commercial areas.

 

ACTION REQUESTED: Approve the Purchase Agreement to sell the property known as 
Vacant Sycamore to the adjacent property owner at 352-358 4 Sycamore in the amount of 
$125.00 ($50 per front foot). 

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS & ACCOUNT NUMBER: Revenue of $125.00 in the TIFA 
Consolidated Fund (492-000-650-040).

 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: The Neighborhood Services Coordinator will coordinate the 
closing with the Department of Legal Affairs upon approval of the Purchase Agreement. 

 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Purchase Agreement and Map Vacant Sycamore



RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #15
Date: May 4, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 
Council concurs with the recommendation of the City Engineer regarding the sale of the Vacant Sycamore 
property; AND

BE IT RESOLVED that Council accepts the offer from Adam T. Aitchison, owner of 352-358 Sycamore, to 
purchase the Vacant Sycamore for the amount of $125.00; AND

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Department of Legal Affairs is hereby directed to prepare the 
necessary documents and the Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized to sign said documents. 
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   









RESOLUTION
 

Item Number: #16
Date: May 4, 2020

 
RESOLUTION by Councilperson _________________________________________
 

Final Reading #1486

AN ORDINANCE ENTITLED
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 14 GARBAGE, TRASH AND WEEDS

ARTICLE I IN GENERAL 
 OF THE WYANDOTTE CODE OF ORDINANCE

THE CITY OF WYANDOTTE ORDAINS:
Section 1. Amend Article I. In General to read as follows: 

Sec. 14.2. Receptacles-Generally.
(d) Notwithstanding sections 14-4 and 14-5, upon written notice from the city, multiple residential, commercial 
and industrial premises must place all solid waste in a non-portable rear load or front load receptacles. All 
apartment buildings with six (6) or more residential units are required to have a non-portable rear load or front 
load receptacles.

Sec. 14.4. Same-Rubbish generally.
  Rubbish may also be placed in non-portable rear load or front load receptacles approved by the city engineer 
which can be mechanically handled by collection equipment of the city contractors. Should a non-portable rear 
load or front load receptacle be utilized, the charges will be determined by resolution of the city council.     
Sec. 14.5. Same-Commercial rubbish.
  Commercial rubbish may be placed in nonportable rear load or front load receptacles of substantial metal 
construction of two (2) to eight (8) cubic yards capacity and shall meet all specifications established by the city 
engineer on the basis of the requirements of the solid waste equipment being used by the city contractor.     
    
   Corrugated cardboard may be placed in non-portable corrugated cardboard receptacles of substantial metal 
construction of six-cubic-yard capacity as supplied by the city contractors.
         
   Receptacles that are badly broken or otherwise fail to meet the requirements of this section may be classified 
as rubbish and, after due notice to the owner, may be collected as rubbish by the department. 
 
   Receptacles which are furnished by the city contractor shall be owned, serviced, maintained and replaced as 
needed by the city contractor.     
    
   Should a non-portable rear load receptacle or non-portable corrugated cardboard receptacle be utilized, the 
charges will be determined by resolution of the city council. 

blekity
Highlight



Sec. 14-7. Same-Location for collection.
(b)   Said receptacles, containers and bundles shall not be placed between the sidewalk and curb, or in the alley, 
as the case may be, before 6:00 p.m. of the day preceding the day scheduled for collection, and all empty 
receptacles and containers shall be removed back onto private property no later than 8:00 p.m. of the day 
following collection.  

   If said receptacles, containers and bundles are placed between the sidewalk and curb, or in the alley, prior to 
or after the permitted times, and the City deems that this condition would pose a health hazard, subject adjacent 
property occupants to an unreasonably offensive odor, or be a public nuisance, the City, with no notification to 
the property owner or tenant, shall pick up the items prior to the next regularly scheduled pick up day.  The 
property owner shall be responsible to pay the City costs as billed by the City to the property owner within 
thirty (30) days of the City’s mailing of the costs owed.  If the property owner fails to do so, the property owner 
is in violation of this ordinance and will be responsible for a municipal civil infraction. 

   It shall be the responsibility of the property owner to ensure its tenants are in compliance with this provision.

Sec. 14.8. Same-Collection frequency, supervision, etc.
   The collection of rubbish from non-portable rear load or front load receptacles approved by the city engineer 
shall be up to three (3) times each week. The collection of rubbish from all other locations shall be once a 
week. The collection of garbage, rubbish and ashes shall be under the direction of the department of 
engineering and shall be performed by the person designated by the city council to collect same.   

Sec. 14.8.1. Same-Collection requirements.
(9)    Non-portable rear load or front load receptacles (dumpsters): Solid waste shall be contained in receptacle 
as defined in sections 14-4, 14-5 and 14-8. A service fee approved by city council will apply. 

(13)  Special refuse/bulk refuse: Shall be separated and clearly marked with a special refuse sticker. 
Refrigerators and freezers shall have the doors removed and be placed on their side. Bulk refuse shall be neatly 
placed out for collection.  All fabric materials such as, but not limited to, sofas, mattresses and box springs that 
are soiled or infested with bed bugs shall be completely wrapped in plastic and securely taped, otherwise the 
items will not be picked up.

(b)   Removal of mass disposal of bulk refuse, domestic rubbish, garbage, solid waste and special refuse 
generated from site evictions, foreclosures, move-outs or construction/renovations, shall be the responsibility of 
the property owner.  The property owner shall contract for the disposal of such materials with a private 
contractor and pay all costs associated with the mass disposal of the materials from the property on the day of 
the site eviction, move-out or construction/renovation activity.  

   In cases where the Court is involved and has issued a writ for possession, the Court Officer with the writ may 
hire a private contractor for disposal of such materials.  

   Dumpsters may be available from the City of Wyandotte DPS at certain times of the year for a fee.  

   If said bulk refuse, domestic rubbish, garbage, solid waste and special refuse generated from site evictions, 
foreclosures, move-outs or construction/renovations are placed between the sidewalk and curb, or in the alley, 
prior to or after the permitted times, and the City deems that this condition would pose a health hazard, subject 



adjacent property occupants to an unreasonably offensive odor, or be a public nuisance, the City, with no 
notification to the property owner or tenant, shall pick up the items prior to the next regularly scheduled pick 
up day.  The property owner shall be responsible to pay the City costs as billed by the City to the property 
owner within thirty (30) days of the City’s mailing of the costs owed.  If the property owner fails to do so, the 
property owner is in violation of this ordinance and will be responsible for a municipal civil infraction. 

Section 2. Interpretation.
Nothing in this Ordinance or in the Code hereby adopted shall be construed to affect any suit or proceeding in 
any court, or any rights acquired, or liability incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or existing, 
under any act or ordinance hereby repealed; nor shall any just or legal right or remedy or any character be lost, 
impaired or affected by this Ordinance.

Section 3. Severability.
Severability.  Should any word, sentence, phrase or any portion of this Ordinance be held in a manner invalid 
by any court of competent jurisdiction or by any state agency having authority to do so for any reason 
whatsoever, such holdings shall be construed and limited to such word, sentence, phrase or any portion of the 
Ordinance held to be so invalid and shall not be construed as affecting the validity of any of the remaining 
words, sentences, phrases or portions of this Ordinance.

Section 4. Conflicting Ordinance.
Conflicting Ordinances.  All prior existing ordinances adopted by the City of Wyandotte inconsistent or in 
conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are, to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency, hereby 
expressly repealed.

Section 5. Effective Date.
This Ordinance shall take effect fifteen (15) days from the date of its passage by the Wyandotte City Council 
and a copy of the Ordinance or a summary of said Ordinance shall be published in a newspaper generally 
circulated in the City of Wyandotte within ten (10) days after adoption.  A copy of this ordinance may be 
inspected or obtained at the City of Wyandotte Clerk’s Office, 3200 Biddle Avenue, Wyandotte, Michigan.
 
I move the adoption of the foregoing resolution.

MOTION by Councilperson 

SUPPORTED by Councilperson 

  YEAS  COUNCIL  NAYS
      
   Alderman    
   Calvin   
   DeSana   
   Maiani   
   Sabuda   
   Schultz   



CITY OF WYANDOTTE
BEAUTIFICATION COMMISSION ON-LINE MEETING MINUTES, DRAFT

APRIL 15, 2020

Members Present: John Darin, Chairman, Kelly Dodson, Andrea Fuller, Noel Galeski, Wendy Leach, Alice 
Ugljesa

Members Excused:  Michael Bak, Barbara Freese, Patricia Iacopelli, Stephanie Pizzo

Guest(s):  None

1. Call to Order: This Regular Meeting was held as an on-line public meeting through Zoom 
Communications.  The meeting was called to order by John at 6:00 pm.  It was noted that the meeting 
packet was attached to the Zoom meeting announcement, but could not be downloaded and/or printed 
by a number of commissioners, and was unavailable for review.  Going forward, the handouts for on-
line meetings of the Commission will be emailed separately to each commissioner.

2. Approval of Agenda:  This meeting’s standard agenda format was approved by consensus.

3. Reading and Approval of Previous Minutes:
a. March 11, 2020  Regular Meeting: Review of the March 11, 2020 meeting minutes was deferred to 

the next Commission meeting because the minutes were unavailable for review.

4. Chairperson’s Report:
a. Distribution of Documents:  An updated Attendance Log was distributed with the meeting packet.

5. Treasurer’s Report:   
a. FY 2019-2020 Beautification Commission Expense Report:  The Treasurer’s Report was distributed 

with the meeting packet, and was reviewed with the commissioners.  There were accrued expenses 
totaling $1,299.75 for Spring Hanging Baskets, and $3,260.80 for Spring Dig-In expenses, leaving a 
current balance of $2,801.18 in the Primary TIF Account.  There were no expenses posted to the 
GFM Reserve account, leaving a current balance of $249.78.  In addition, the Beautification 
Commission, acting as an account agent, accrued Spring planting expenses of $1,036.32 for the 
Purple Heart Memorial Garden, out of the DDA PHMG account; and $204.89 for the Vietnam 
Veterans Memorial Garden, out of the Vietnam Veterans Committee account.  All Spring planting 
expenses will be invoiced upon date of delivery, currently scheduled for May 15, 2020 (hanging 
baskets) and May 16, 2020 (all others).

6. Public & Media Relations and Event Marketing Report:  Andrea reported that she has posted 
announcements of the Spring Clean-Up cancellation.  She will not actively promote the community 
garden opening at this time, due to uncertainty of the garden opening date.

7. “Adopt-A-Spot in Wyandotte” Program Update:  There was nothing new to report.

8. Community Garden Update:  
a. Community Garden Opening Postponed:  The Community Garden Opening, scheduled for Saturday, 

April 25th, has been postponed to a future date, due to the COVID-19 pandemic.  It is hoped to re-
schedule the garden opening in May.  Timing will be consistent with City of Wyandotte COVID-19 
mitigation measures, including social distancing and use of PPE.  Communications have gone out to 
all community gardeners.  A total of 4 applications have been received to date from current 
gardeners, and 2 new applications were placed on the Waiting List.

b. Phase 2 Planning:  Implementation of Phase 2 design and build-out has been postponed to a future 
date, due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

c. Ribbon-Cutting Event Planning:  The Community Garden Ribbon-Cutting ceremony, scheduled for 
Thursday, July 23rd, has been postponed to a future date, due to the COVID-19 pandemic.  



Beautification Commission Meeting Minutes, Draft
April 15, 2020
Page 2

9. Spring Clean-Up:  
a. Spring Clean-Up Cancelled:  Noel reported that the Spring Clean-Up, originally scheduled for 

Saturday, April 25, 2020, has been cancelled due to the COVID-19 pandemic, by a 7-0 on-line roll 
call vote.   A re-configured event may be re-scheduled for a later date, or may be incorporated into 
approved Spring Dig-In activities. 

b. KAB & Niagara Bottled Water Support:  John reported that he received a coupon from KAB for 10 
cases of Niagara bottled water, 32 /cs., available at Southgate Lowe’s.  When an attempt was 
made to pick-up the water, John reported that he was informed that 1) only cases of 24/cs. were 
available, and the coupon could not be applied; and 2) the water distribution was a “non-essential” 
activity, and could not be completed due to the COVID-19 Executive Order in effect.  John 
communicated this to his contact at KAB.

c. City Support for Planting Clean-Up After May 1, 2020:  A plan submitted by the Beautification 
Commission for limited clean-up of dead plant material in selected downtown planted areas in 
public right-of-ways by individual commissioners under tight social distancing and PPE 
requirements after May 1st , or following lifting or easing of the Governor’s applicable Executive 
Order(s), was reviewed and approved by Gregory Mayhew, City Engineer, “subject to, and adhering 
to, all future/additional restrictions imposed by Governmental orders, or recommended public safety 
precautions”.  The dead brush will be removed by the commissioner(s), and will be stored at their 
home until the Recycling Center reopens to the public.  The recommended sites were reviewed. 
The Clean-Up will be re-visited after May 1.  

10. Spring Dig-In Status Review:  
a. Dig-In Status Review:  There was much discussion regarding holding the Dig-In on schedule, and the 

number/type of participants in the event.  The Spring Dig-In planning will be re-visited after May 1st.
b. Landscape Planning and Review of Flower Orders:  The landscape orders were reviewed by Alice.

11. Old Business:  There was no Old Business.

12. New Business:  There was no New Business.

13. Round-Table Reports and Announcements: There were no round-table reports or announcements..

14. Next Meeting:  The next regular meeting of the Beautification Commission is scheduled for Wednesday, 
May 13, 2020 at 6:00 pm at City Hall, Mayor’s Conference Room, Third Floor, 3200 Biddle Avenue.  This 
may be an on-line meeting, depending on the status of the Governor’s Shelter-In-Place Executive Order, 
and the City of Wyandotte’s COVID-19 mitigation measures.

15. Adjournment:  The meeting was adjourned at 6:40 pm.

___________________________________
John M. Darin
Chairman, Wyandotte Beautification Commission 



Downtown Development Authority 

Meeting Minutes 
5:30 PM, February 11th, 2020 

Council Chambers, 3200 Biddle Avenue, Suite 300 

Wyandotte, Michigan 48192  

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Rick DeSana, John Jarjosa, Scott Jordan, Bryan Kozinski, Anne Majlinger, Patt 

Slack, Norm Walker 

MEMBERS EXCUSED: Mayor Peterson, Leo Stevenson 

OTHERS PRESENT: Joe Gruber, DDA Director 

PUBLIC COMMENT: None present 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES & AGENDA:  

Minutes from January 2020 Meeting and Agenda for February 2020 Meeting 

Motion by A. Majlinger, supported by J. Jarjosa to approve the minutes from the January regular 

meeting and the agenda for the February regular meeting. All in favor, motion carried.   

INFORMATION TO RECEIVE & PLACE ON FILE: None 

MONTHLY REVENUE/EXPENDITURE REPORT 

Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report: January 31st, 2020 

 

Motion by P. Slack, supported by N. Walker to accept and approve the Monthly Revenue 

and Expenditure Report. Roll Call. All in Favor, motion carried. 

ONGOING PROJECTS & BUSINESS:  

Eureka Road Viaduct Maintenance Contract: Director Gruber shared background for the 2020 

Eureka Road Viaduct Maintenance Contract bidding and request for proposal process. The City 

prepared project specifications for the landscaping and maintenance contract and advertised the 

project per standard procurement procedures.  The City received zero bids.  The DDA Board of 

Directors then instructed the DDA Director to solicit and procure at least three proposals which 

included specific items of work and quotes for service. The DDA Director collected three 

proposals: P&P Landscaping, D&B Landscaping and Grosse Ile. Lawn and Sprinkler. The 

proposals were reviewed and the low bidder was interviewed to confirm his understanding of the 

scope of the work and bid. Chairwoman Slack offered insight from the DDA Finance Committee 

meeting during which all three proposals were reviewed and critiqued. The DDA Finance 

Committee made the recommendation to hire the low bidder, Grosse Ile. Lawn and Sprinkler. 

 

Motion by P. Slack, supported by J. Jarjosa to accept the proposal from Grosse Ile. Lawn 

and Sprinkler for the annual Eureka Road Viaduct Annual Maintenance Program in the  

amount of $18,970.00 and to make the recommendation to Mayor and City Council to 

accept and sign the contract. Roll Call. All in Favor, motion carried. 



 

Wyandotte Farmer’s Market Service Contracts: Director Gruber offered a brief update that 

the recently DDA-approved and recommended service contracts for the Vintage Market Home 

and Eastern Market Corporation for the 2020 Wyandotte Farmer’s Market were accepted and 

approved by Mayor and City Council. 

Downtown GalleryWay: Director Gruber shared a report that the Downtown GalleryWay and 

outdoor art pieces were finally installed and put into place. Chairwoman Slack and Director 

Gruber shared detailed descriptions of the physical space, the artwork and the process by which 

the artwork was attained, produced and assembled. 

NEW BUSINESS:  

Destination Downriver Memorandum of Understanding: Director Gruber shared a 

Memorandum of Understanding from the new Destination Downriver coalition and outlined the 

background information regarding this recreation and tourism-based organization. He shared a 

description of the MOU and outlined the request to have Wyandotte added as a member 

community with DDA Director sitting as the appointed representative for the City of Wyandotte.  

Motion by P. Slack, supported by S. Jordan to accept and recommend the Destination Downriver MOU 

be further accepted and signed by Mayor and City Council. Roll Call. All in favor, motion carried.   

Wyandotte Industries Art Donation: Director Gruber shared a letter of interest and donation 

made by Jerry Szpondowski Jr. and Wyandotte Industries to donate $20,000 to the City of 

Wyandotte to install a permanent piece of public art. Director Gruber outlined the process by 

which he and Chairwoman Slack will be meeting and coordinating with Department Heads to 

accept the donation and deliver the project. 

Updated Business Stimulus Grant Program Application: Director Gruber explained the 2017 

Business Stimulus Program and noted that the program application will be updated and 

modernized while the aspects of the grant and its program guidelines will remain the same. 

NEXT REGULAR MEETING: March 10th, 2020 Special meeting location: Downriver Council for the  

ADJOURNMENT: 5:53 PM 

Motion by P. Slack, supported by B. Kozinzki to adjourn the meeting. All in favor, motion carried.   

Respectfully Submitted, 

Joe Gruber, DDA Director 






	 CALL TO ORDER
	 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	 ROLL CALL
	 PRESENTATIONS
	 PRESENTATION OF PETITIONS
	 PUBLIC HEARINGS
	 Special Assessment District #944A - Sidewalk Repai
	 Commercial Redevelopment District – 100 Maple (als

	 UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	 CALL TO THE PUBLIC
	 CONSENT AGENDA
	1. Approval of City Council Meeting Minutes - 04.20.2
	Resolution
	City Council Minutes_04.20.2020

	2. Rezoning Request 141 Goodell, 136 Goodell and Vaca
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	Rezoning 141-136 Goodell and 1203 2nd

	3. 2020-21 City Hall Cleaning Contract Extension
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	City Hall Cleaning Contract Extension 2020
	Veterans Request for Extension 2020-21

	4. 2020-21 Police and Court Cleaning Contract Extensi
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	Veterans Request for Extension 2020-21
	Police Court Cleaning Contract Extension 2020-21

	5. Purchase Additional 96 Gallon Toters (Carts)
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution


	 NEW BUSINESS
	6. Special Assessment District #944A
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	Special Assessment Roll District #944A

	7. Commercial Redevelopment District – 100 Maple (als
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	100 Maple_CRD-CFEC Eligibility Determination_2020.Feb.20

	8. Fort Street Sign Maintenance Contract
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	Fort Street Sign Contract 2020

	9. Summer Event Cancellations
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution

	10. Sanitary Sewer Investigation
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	Wyandotte - Van Alstyne - Proposal

	11. 2nd Amendment to the Purchase Agreement for the pr
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	1853 McKinley 2nd Amendment
	1867 McKinley 2nd Amendment

	12. Sale of former 3367 12th Street (30' x 100')
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	Purchase Agreement and Map Former 3367 12th Street

	13. Sale of former 316 Clark (50' x 102')
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	Purchase Agreements Former 316 Clark

	14. Sale of former 1331 Walnut (7.5' x 120')
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	Purchase Agreement Former 1331 Walnut

	15. Sale of former Vacant Property on Sycamore (10' x
	Request for Council Action Form
	Resolution
	Purchase Agreement and Map Vacant Sycamore

	16. Final Reading #1486: Ordinance Amendment to Chapte
	Resolution


	 BILLS & ACCOUNTS
	 REPORTS & MINUTES
	 Beautification Commission 04/15/2020
	Beautification Commission Minutes, Draft, Apr. 15, 2020

	 Downtown Development Authority 02/11/2020
	February 2020 DDA meeting mins

	 Fire Commission 3/10/2020
	Fire Commission 3-10-2020


	 REMARKS OF THE MAYOR, COUNCIL, & ELECTED OFFICIALS
	 NEXT MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL:
	 ADJOURNMENT



